



WFUNA 801 First Avenue 3rd Floor ew York, NY, 10017

Email: wimun@wfuna.org Phone: +41 (0) 22 917 32 74 Instagram: @wimunsecretariat

UN ENVIRONMENT ASSEMBLY 1



Solutions from the One Planet network to curb plastic pollution wfuna (G



Solutions from the One Planet network to curb plastic pollution

One planet



This report by the One Planet network responds to the request made at the Fourth United Nations Environment Assembly, in its Resolution 6 on 'Marine plastic litter and: microplastics', operative paragraph 5 (UNEP/EA.4/Res.6)

"Requests the Executive Director, through UNEP's 10-Year Framework of Programmes on Sustainable Consumption and Production patterns, to develop guidelines for the use and production of plostics in order to inform consumers, including about standards and labels; to incentivize businesses and retailers to commit themselves to using sustainable practices and products and to support governments in promoting the use of information tools and incentives to foster sustainable consumation and orduction."



Acknowledgements

The One Planet network Secretariat would like to thank the following stakeholders who provided inputs and reviewed the guidance:

One Planet network programme stakeholders

Adrea Norgen Stochhell minischnemer Institut, One Planet Sustainable Ultreplex and Education Programma, Con von Geer (Minisch y Inframrunum and Water Munagement, De Maret Sustainable Ulterplex and Education Programma, Exa Alfred Texiconnental Prostation Agency, One Planet Sustainable Ulterplex and Education Programma, Iban Alfred Texiconnental Programma, Boa Relit Great Education Programma, Boa Relit Great and Agriculture Organization (JRV). One Planet Sustainable Advector Hocurument Programma, Boa Relit Great World Tourism Organization (JRV). One Planet Sustainable Advector Programma, Verpira Fernandez-Traga World Tourism Organization (JRV). One Planet Sustainable Advector Programma, Verpira Fernandez-Traga World Tourism Organization (JRV). One Planet Sustainable Advector Programma.

United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP)

Cecilia Lopez y Royo, Elisa Tonda, Fabienne Pierre, Nils Heuer (One Planet Sustainable Consumer Information Programmel, Ran Xe.

Secretariat of the Basel, Rotterdam and Stockholm Conventions (BRS) Giovanna Moire, Kei Ohno Woodall, Marylene Beau

Publication coordinated by Gina Torregroza and Svitlana Mikhalyeva, 10YFP Secretariat, UNEP

Financial support



Recommended Citation One Planet network (2022) - Solutions from the One Planet network to curb plastic pollution

The findings, interpretations, and conclusions expressed in this paper are entirely those of the authors and do nots. necessarily reflect the views of their afflicted argumizations or the views and policies of their national governments. The lade and contribution guidons and all express constanted in the evolutions of their provided the table to no known competing francial instrests or personal relationships that could have appeared to influence the work reported.



Foreword

It's time to shift gears. Think, act, and inspire others

Plastic is slowly onisoning the planet and its inhabitants with a seemingly ever-growing production and recycled at of its global community of practitioners, policymakers, a rate that seems not to take into account plastic's dangerous effects on marine and terrestrial ecosystems. This report can only reinforce the urgency of addressing plastic pollution and confront its readers with the reality that this will require a defining shift in global production and consumption patterns.

The momentum for such change was met during the fifth session of the United Nations Environment Assembly (UNEA), during which 175 countries adopted a Resolution, titled "End Plastic Pollution: Towards a legally binding instrument". The landmark document established an Intergovernmental Nepotiating Committee (INC). appointed to draft the new plastic pollution treaty which will address the entire life cycle of plastics.

The Interpovernmental Negotiating Committee has a strong mandate to enable the fundamental shift to a circular economy model, where the use of plastics is minimized right from the earliest stages of its value chain, with upstream solutions. Indeed, this shift in naradigm requires reliable sustainability information systematically distributed to consumers, based on life cycle thinking and credible labelling standards.

Our message is simple - stopping plastic pollution at the source, changing our behaviors, and shifting towards circular approaches that keep materials in our economies for as long as possible, is feasible.

The One Planet Network has leveraged the joint evnertise and evnerts to collect in this report tools and solution coherent with its long-established work on SDG 12.

Consistent efforts will be needed to inform consumers. hut also trigger hebavioral change market sustainable solutions, promote sustainable procurement practices. and engage businesses in different high-impact sectors.

Our message is simple -stopping plastic pollution at the source, changing our behaviors, and shifting towards circular approaches that keep materials in our economies for as long as possible, is feasible and, in fact, is already happening across many industries. We need to shift gears, think, act and inspire others to act.

This report represents a key contribution to the upcoming work of the Intergovernmental Negotiating Committee and a solid foundation for a future treaty on plastics to address prevention and upstream solutions.

> Jorge Laguna-Celis One Planet Network Secretariat





Table of contents

Table of contents	7
Executive Summary	9
CHAPTER ONE	10
INTRODUCTION	10
1.1 Aim of the report	11
1.2 Global plastic consumption and production	12
CHAPTER TWO	14
Circular approaches to plastic pollution	14
2.1. The global plastics value chain: use and end-of-life stages as hotspots of plastic leakages and impacts	15
2.2 Packaging as the largest application of plastics	19
2.3 Adopting a systemic approach to prioritize action on plastics	21
2.4 Building circularity in the plastics value chain	23
2.5 Developing recommendations for implementing a common agenda for plastic pollution	25
CHAPTER THREE	26
Solutions to reduce the use of plastic packaging	26
3.1 Providing reliable and quality information to consumers	27
3.2 Governments leading by example and steering market transformation through public procurement	36
3.3 Engaging households and consumers in the fight against plastic packaging pollution	41
3.4. Engaging key sectors and industries against plastic pollution: tourism	48
CHAPTER FOUR	54
Recommendations and conclusions	54
4.1 Key messages to governments	55
4.2 Key messages to businesses	56
4.3 Way forward	57
CHAPTER FIVE	58
Key definitions	58
Problematic or unnecessary plastic packaging or plastic packaging components	59
Reusable packaging	59
Recyclable packaging	61
Compostable packaging	63
Biodegradable	65
Post-consumer recycled content	65
References	67





wfuns 🕢

Executive Summary

The challenges around plattic pollution result from unsutariable commercian and production patterns and inadequate waste management, compounded by increased demand for single use plastics induced, among others, by the comovivus gobla pandemic (COUID-19); 1 The 2022 New Plastics Economy Global Commitment Progress Report2 demonstrases that in 2021 the use of plastic packaging increased by 25%, bringing us back to the levels of 2018.

In this context, it becomes clear that only a systemic change in the ways we produce and consume can reverse the current trends. Circular economy approaches can support driving this systemic change.

The Plact Waste Anendments to the Basid Convention on the Cortrol of Trantbounday Movements of Hazardous Wastes recommends actions that governments, business and Individuals cale to Taciltase upremain and systemic solutions to address placits pollution. A coordinated multistakholder actions in enedd, particularly by addressing use and consumption of plastic packaging - a major source of marine Bitter.

The present report was developed in collaboration with the stakholders of the One Plane network (Consumer Information, Lifestyles and Education, Public Procurement and Tourism programmes), a global community of practicinent, policymaker, and experts, including governments, businesses, roll society, academia, and intermaticand organization, janning forces around implementation of Sustainable Development Gait12 (SDCI2). The report provides an overview of solutions and recommendations developed by the One Planet network around:

- Reliable sustainability information within existing standards, labels, and claims
- Triggers for behaviour change, including nudging strategies and awareness campaigns
- Creation of markets for sustainable solutions and concrete pathways for governments to lead by example using sustainable procurement practices.
- Implementation of circular economy of plastics in the tourism sector, including through direct engagement of businesses towards reduction of plastics pollution.

Additionally, the present report builds on findings from previous reports by the blinkel Addations Environment Facility (EGF) Marine (Bacco Evolution at a sossissian in the 3021 report from address planic pollution as assessed in the 3021 report from the source of the source of the source and the polarize pollution addemonitrates of these multi-addeniate index pollutions and demonitrates of these multi-addeniate index pollution and demonitrates of these multi-addeniate index pollution and demonitrates of these multi-addeniate index pollution and the index pollution and address of the pollution and the source to be address of the pollution and the source to be demonstrated and a practical way to implement requests to Member States.

 Ellen MacArthur Foundation, 2022, The Global Commitment 2022 Progress Report https://emit.thiclight.com/Unk/pices/22iciau/-e57spvi/@/Wid=0

Linited Nations Environment Programme (UNEP), 2021b. From Pollution to Solution: A global assessment of marine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.



Summary: Chapter 1

This chapter introduces the problem of plastic pollution, highlighting its environmental impacts, including harm to wildlife, disruption of ecosystems, and contribution to greenhouse gas emissions.



CHAPTER ONE

INTRODUCTION



1.1 aim of the report

of our time. Rising levels of plastics are accumulating in the governments, business and individuals can take to facilitate environment, with the flow of plastic into the ocean projected upstream and systemic solutions to address plastic pollution. It to almost triple by 2040. This trend is causing worldwide specifically focuses on guidance around the use and environmental and health impacts. Mismanaged plastic alters consumption of plastic packaging - the main application of habitats, harms wildlife and damages ecosystem function and plastics and a major source of marine litter. services. Fossil fuel feedstock inputs for virgin plastics add to global greenhouse gas emissions: plastic waste can block it also shows how a multi-stakeholder network can efficiently

contamination and diseases; while open burning emits dioxins, of implementing Member State requests. The report is a and other towin pollutants that transfer pollution humlens to air infinent resonance to resolutions advected at the fourth session

The challenges around plastics result from unsustainable production and consumption patterns and inadequate waste

Although plastic has been critical to the COVID-19 respons through its use in personal protective equipment (PPE) and in supporting public health measures regarding hypiene, those responses have scarcely adopted a sustainability lens and considered environmental impacts in fact COMD.19 has further emphasized the need to better understand the system in which the plastics value chain operates, including how different drivers shape operations along the value chain and lifestyles. highlighting trade-offs that deserve particular attention.

The Plastic Waste Amendments to the Basel Convention on the Control of Transhoundary Movements of Hazardous Wastes were adopted in 2019 and added plastic waste to the controls on global trade, thereby promoting progress in waste management guidance. This report illustrates the role of sustainable consumption and production in systemically

Plastic pollution is one of the major environmental challenges addressing plastic pollution and recommends actions that

drainage systems and amplify the risk of flooding, mobilize to deliver concrete outputs and a practical way of the United Nations Environment Assembly (UNEA4) in March 2019 (including the resolution on marine plastic litter and microplastics (UNEP/EA.4/Res.6), the resolution on addressing single-use plastic products pollution (UNEP/ EA.4/ Res.98 and the need to accelerate progress on United Nations Sustainable Development Goal (SDG) 12 This applies in particular to SDG 12.5 on reducing waste generation through prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse; SDG 12.6 on encouraging businesses to adopt sustainable practices and to integrate sustainability information; SDG 12.7 on promoting sustainable public procurement practices: and SDG 12.8 on ensuring relevant information and awareness for sustainable

> This report builds on findings from previous reports by the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) under the GEF Morine Plastics Project and brings forward solutions to address plastic pollution as assessed in the 2021 report From Pollution to Solution - A global assessment of marine litter and

1.1 Did you know that...

Definition: Plastic pollution is the accumulation of plastic products in the environment that adversely affects wildlife, wildlife habitat and humans

Did you know that ... ? By 2060. 145 metric tons (Mt) of plastics will have accumulated in the ocean. The ocean is projected to receive an annual inflow of 4 Mt of mismanaged waste plastics from rivers and coastlines by 2060, more than double the inflows of 1.7 Mt in 2019. (OECD. 2022)

1.1 Something to think about

Did you know that 2 Researchers estimate that humans ingest around 5 grams of plastic a week equivalent to a credit card. These icals that disrupt endocrine functions and potentially cause cancers or developmental issues. Microplastics are found in tap water, bottled water, salt, honey, and even beer. A person consuming seafood regularly can ingest 11,000 microplastic particles annually.

Did you know that ...? Asia is the largest plastics producer in the world. China alone accounted for 32 percent of global production in 2022, (Statista Research Department, 2024)

1.1 Did you know that...

Something to think about: How much did the volume of plastics generated increase after the COVID-19 pandemic and what was its impact on the marine ecosystem?

Did you know that ... ? It is estimated that in Italy alone, between 160,000 and 440.000 Mt of additional waste was produced in 2020 due to intensified reliance on medical protective equipment during the Covid-19 pandemic. (UNEP, 2021)

³ The Pew Charitable Trusts, SISTEMIC, 2020. United Nations Environment

A Programme (UNEPL 2021b, From Pollution to Solution. A elobal assessment of marine litter and plastic pollution. United

1.2 global plastic consumption and production

Platic: have become one of the most ubliquitous materials used globally. Their production has increased dramatically, quadrupling over the past four decades. 5 A major economic actrs, the platist industry corresponds to about 3% of the global economy, and demand continues to grow, with the size of the global platist: market estimated to be around US583 billion in 2020 (compared to an estimated US552 billion in 2020). For enter them continue, by 2050 the platist: industry could account for 20% of the world's total of consumptions?

Figure 1.1: Annual global polymer resin and fibre production in million metric tonnes. 1950 to 2015



Approximately 6.3 billion terms of plastic how machine on 6-4 bill exist the start of mass production in the 1900, only anound 9bil of which has been recycled and 12b has been increased 20 correctively of plastic recycling fail with billion (dotal into giving rates for start commodilies of these productions and page GBB). Long 700, and each returns production and page GBB. Long 700, and each returns production and management (information and the machine regioner start) management (information and the sublishing control and the management (information and the sublishing control and the management (information and the start) bild.

- UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of marine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya
- UNEP, 2018, Mapping of global plastics value chain and plastics losses to the environment, p.6.
- 7 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of marine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.
- B Ellen MacArthur Foundation (2016), The New Plastics Economy: Rethinking the future of plastics, p.27.
- 9 UNEP, 2018: Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach Stocktaking report. Noten, P. United Nations Environment Programma National Kenna n.B.

el information about the components of plance products, which can load to be of galary through the mains of seate stream. Unmarky, this has caused millions of fores of plance wants to be discarded and placed in landfills, to become part of uncontrolled and minamaged watte streams or to be dumped in the environment, including at soil. The fact the placed is environment, including at call place is many placed in environment, including at theil persist in mature for a long time. It can take the ocean 40 years to the advert place is environly.

With global cumulative plastic production between 1950 and 2050 predicted to reach 34,000 million tons, it is urgent to reduce global plastic production and flows of plastic waste into the environment.

The second secon

10 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of marine littler and plantic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

11 http://www.welcrum.org/agenda/2018/11/chart-of-the-day-this-is-howlong-everyday-plastic-items-last-in-the-ocean/

12 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment on narine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Interaction. Nairobi. Kerva

13 UNEP, 2018. Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach Stocktaking report. Notten, P. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya, p.27.

14 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of marine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

1.2 Something to think about

How can we reduce plastic production? What effects does the plastic industry have on the environment? What other materials can replace single use plastic with the aim of reducing its impact on the environment?

1.2 Did you know that...

Asia is the largest plastics producer in the world. China alone accounted for 32 percent of global production in 2022. (Statista Research Department, 2024)

1.2 Something to think about

Levels of plastic recycling are low due to improper water management and lack of information. It can take the ocean 450 years to break down plastic. How can we reach people and teach them how to recycle plastics to avoid mixing waste streams (such as plastics, metals, organics, and other materials) in the disposal or recycling process which complicates the management of plastic pollution and undermines efforts to reduce it?

Did you know? Plastic has been found in Antarctica and at the bottom of the Mariana Trench, showing that no part of the planet is untouched. This highlights how ocean currents and atmospheric transport spread plastic globally.



1.2 global plastic consumption and production

Platic: have become one of the most allegatous materials used globally. Their products has increased atomatically, guadruping over the part frour decides.5.4 magic economic acts, the platic industry corresponds to about 3% of the global economy and delimited continues to a setsmand USSED billion in 2020 (compared to an estimated USSED billion in 2020) (compared to an estimated USSED billion in 2020) (compared 20 of the works that ol a consumption.8 Information about the components of planck products, which can have to be of quality through the mining of audits streams, Utilitativity, Itals has caused millions of tons of planck waters to be discarded and placed in landfills, to examp part of uncontrolled and mismanaged water treams or to be dumped in the environment, including at a. 0.1 The fact that places is entermilly available mains that will partial in nature far a long time. It can take the ocusin 60 years to be add on places.

Figure 1.1: Annual global polymer resin and fibre production in million metric tonnes, 1950 to 2015



Approximately & 3 bition some of planck how machine and of the size the sector of mass production in the 1900, only anound the of information may be a size of the sector of anound the of information of the sector of the secnet balance and the sector of the sector of the sector of the web balance and the sector of the sector of the sector of the 200m information of the sector of the sector of the secptor of the sector of the balance of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the balance of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the balance of the sector of the sector of the sector of the sector of the balance of the sector of the se

- g UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of marine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya
- UNEP, 2018, Mapping of global plastics value chain and plastics losses to the environment, p.6.
- 7 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of marine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment. Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.
- Ellen MacArthur Foundation (2016), The New Plastics Economy: Rethinking the future of plastics, p.27.
- 9 UNEP, 2018. Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach Stocktaking report. Noteen, P. United Nations Environment. Programme. Nairobi, Kense, p.8.

With global cumulative plastic production between 1950 and 2050 predicted to reach 34,000 million tons, it is urgent to reduce global plastic production and flows of plastic waste into the environment.

Plastics represent the largest, most harmful and most persistent proportion of marine litter, accounting for at least 85% of total marine waste 10. The scale and rander

revenues que una entranom titre ad galar guildancia a particular de la construcción de la quelle de construcción de la construcción de la quelle de la construcción de la construcción de la construtación de la construcción de la

10 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment o marine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

11 https://www.welcoum.org/agenda/2018/11/chart-of-the-day-this-io-howlong-everyday-plastic-items-last-in-the-cosan/

(2 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment o narine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Inogramme. Nairobi, Kenya

13 UNEP, 2018. Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach Stocktaking report. Notten, P. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya, p.27.

14 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment o marine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

1.2 Did you know that...

The five major ocean gyres act like vortexes that trap platics forming floating debris fields. The Great Pacific Garbage Patch which is the largest accumulation of ocean platic in the world and is located in the North Pacific Gyre between Hawaii and California. It contains an essipative 80.000 tone equivalent to 500 jumbio jets. Almost half of its mass is made up of discarded

Definition: In oceanography, a gyre is any large system of ocean surface currents moving in a circular fashion driven by wind movements.

Did you know that...? An estimated 11 million metric toxic of plastice effects on easily and metric toxic of plastice effects on the second results of the second second second second second toxic bits of the second second second second toxic bits of the second second second second there will be more plastic in the ocean by weight than fifth. The statement was featured second second second second second second Rethinking the future of Plastic. The report Rethinking the future of feature. The second relation of the second pollution and the need for a circular economy environmental circuits.

Did you know that...? Approximately 80% of marine plastic come from land-based activities, including littering, inadequate water management, and includinal splittings CSM of bottles, and packaging, which are used for just bottles, and packaging, which are used for just incluse sup regrating the term watering order, ventually endowing there and oceans. of marine microplastics.





least 85% of total marine waste 12 The scale and ranidly increasing volume of marine litter and plastic pollution are putting the health of all marine ecosystems, the quality of coastal environments and the viability of tourism and fishery industries at risk. Evidence has shown the ingestion of plastics by fish, and the possible migration of constituent chemical additives into the food chain.13 Plastics can also alter global carbon cycling through their effect on plankton and primary production in marine, freshwater and terrestrial systems. Marine ecosystems, especially mangroves, seagrasses, corals and salt marshes, play a major role in carbon sequestration. The more damage that is done to oceans and mastal areas the harder it is for ecosystems to offset and remain resilient to climate change.14

12 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of

14 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of

1.2 Something to think about

What has been the impact of marine plastic litter on the biodiversity of animals and organisms living in the ocean? How has plastic contributed to population declines of seabirds and marine mammals? How many coastal environments have been affected by plastic

1.2 Did you know that...

Coral reefs are being suffocated by pollutants, leading to bleaching and loss of

1.2 Did you know that...

In 2016, the Ellen MacArthur Foundation in collaboration with the World Economic Forum more plastic in the ocean by weight than fish. This statement was featured in a report titled The New Plastics Economy: Rethinking the Future of Plastics. The report highlighted the increasing levels of plastic pollution and the need for a circular economy approach to address the growing environmental crisis.





Placis: policition also impacts air quilty and soil. Become research drives that microplacia commitments on soils is between 4 and 23 times larger than in the sea 15 However, and 23 bits larger than in the sea 15 However, because the sea 15 However, and the sea 15 However, discribing the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, the sea 10 However, and the sea 10 Howeve



- 15 EQAPER (2018), Plastic Pollution in Soli, https://ieep.eu/uploads/articles/ attachments/2c22c28c-3bd-4H3-a27b-785446a0ba06(PlasticH20 pollutionK20mK20a0) FDHA, ptf?v=63446423422, p.5.
- 16 Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO) (2018), Soil Pollution: A Hidden Reality, http://www.fao.org/1/1918/26/(H182en.pdf, p.12.

17 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of marine little and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.



CHAPTER TWO

CIRCULAR APPROACHES TO PLASTIC POLLUTION



Summary: Chapter 2

This chapter delves into the global plastics value chain, identifying use and end-of-life stages as hotspots for plastic leakages and environmental impacts. It discusses the dominance of packaging in plastic applications and emphasizes the need for systemic approaches to build circularity in the plastics value chain.



2.1. the global plastics value chain: use and end-of-life stages as hotspots of plastic leakages and impacts

Based on UNEP's 2018 report on Mapping of global plastics value chain and plastics losses to the environment, an overview of the global plastics valuechain is provided in Figure 2.1.



Key plastic value chain stages and associated stakeholders

Another and the second second

Figure 2.1: Overview of stages and stakeholders/interest groups associated with each stage of the plastic value chain



Source: UNEP (2018b.)

2.1 Did you know that...

...? Adopting a circular economy approach, where materials are reused, recycled, or repurposed instead of discarded, could reduce 80% of ocean-bound plastics by 2040.

wfuns (cc)

2.1 Did you know that...

Definition 1: Microplastics are small plastic particles less than 5 millimeters in diameter. Definition 2: Macroplastics are large plastic items, typically greater than 5 millimeters in size, such as plastic bottles, bags, and packaging materials.

2.1 Something to think about

Figure 2.1: Overview of Stages and Stakeholders/Interest Groups associated with each stage of the plastic value chain.

How can we reduce microplastic leakages in use and end-of-life stages of plastic products after they have been used and discarded? How can Member States take action to reduce the impact of plastics in other stages of the plastic value chain?



Figure 2.2: Global plastic value chain and estimated leakages to the environment, 2015



Source: Ryberg et al. (2009).

The stages along the plastics value chain range from the wattaction of raw materials for glustics production to the final disposal of the plastic or plastic-containing products. Studies based on all file-syste approach indicate that plastic leakages can happen throughout the entrie value chain, from polymer production to final plastic commodity production, from the urage stage to end-of-life treatment.

When examining the global placetics value chain, the interpret placet loadespot court aft the value global and and aff. If the tage (55%) in general, about 90% of and aff. If the tage (55%) is general, about 90% of the stage and 13% of macroplacet loadespot in the stage and the tage and 13% of macroplacet loadespot in the stage of the tage and 13% of macroplacet loadespot in the and estimated environmental loadespot value chain and estimated environmental loadespot value chain and estimated environmental loadespot value chain and estimated environmental loadespot stage and plotocost of the 20%. The masses of placets loades to and theory per value chain tages, 19% of the store prevalue chain tages, 19% of

18 Ryberg, Michael Z. Hauschild, Feng Wang, Sandra Avenue-Monnery, Alexis Laurent (2019): Global environmental losses of plastics across their value chains. Resources, Conservation & Recycling, 151 (2019) 104659 DCI, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.inscorpre.2019.104649.

19 The mass of plastics produced is not equal to the mass of plastics disposed of due to plastic service lifetime extending beyond the year of production. Accordingly, a proportion of the plastic waste disposed of in 2015 was produced prior no 2015. At the use tage, businesses and consumers who use the products are the low standholds who can influence and put pressure on plantic producers and processors based on their consumption character. At the and of the tage, the meganetic field of the stand stands and the responsible for managing fastic waters. Realds waters management is sitely to do command by policy, water management system, often collected as part of municipal water or as asparate plantic component. Businesses are stand used MMM, where in the form of management if man management is sitely and the instrument of the management is sitely and the stand stand and the management is sitely as a segment plantic component. Businesses are asparate from other waters are also base compared to impuration from other waters are also base compared to assign musical, businessing it more stand on the stand base of the stand of the stand base of the stand base of the stand of the stand of the stand base of the stand of the stand base of the stand base of the stand of the stand base of the stan

National and international governmental bodies, as well as other non-governmental institutions, can influence all parts of the plastic value chain through different measures. This can be done by implementing legislation, setting targets, specifying standards or otherwise applying pressure on other stakeholders involved.21

2.1 Did you know that...

Some countries are requiring corporations to take back and recycle the plastics they produce, shifting accountability to producers.

²⁰ UNEP, 2018b. Mapping of global plastics value chain and plastics losses to the environment (with a focus on marine environment).

²¹ LINEP, 2018b. Mopping of global plantics value chain and plantics losses to the environment (with a focus on marine environment).



illustrative sizes and examples of plastics commonly found in the marine environment1 (ten Brink et al. 2016)

Size class	Size class + Nano		Micro Meso		Mega
Particle size	Particle size < 1 µm		< 3 cm	cim	>1m
Examples of plastic particles Adapted from ten Br	Nanofbres from clothing Rubber tyn duttin Nanoparticles in products and pharmaceuticals	Microbeads from re personal care Pragments of Inggre plastic products Polyniyeene fragments Blasting plastic from shipyards Incineration part ticules	Bottle caps Plantic pellets Pragments of larger plantic products	Beverage bottles Plastic bags Disposable tableware and cubery Take-away containers and cubenable cups (including those of Styrofoamyloolystymere) Beer ties Tyres Pipes Balloors and toys Testles	Fishing rets and traps Rope Bouts Plastic film Construction PVC



Both for macroplastics and microplastics, the main hotspots in terms of leakages and potential impacts on the marine environment are related to the use stage and the end- of-life stage of the plastic value chain. Businesses, consumers and governments are kny stakeholders influencing these stages.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES BOX The plastics value chain

- Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach Stocktaking report - takes stock of existing knowledge and actions
- Mapping of global plastics value chain and plastics losses to the environment - maps plastic leakages to identify hotspots along global value chain
- Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach Recommendations for action - recommends systemic actions to achieve a circular economy
- Addressing Marine Plastics. A Roadmap to a Circular Economy provides an action-oriented strategy through a set of priority solutions to be implemented by targeted stakeholders
- National guidance for plastic pollution hotspotting and shaping
- action introduces science-based workflow to support the development of key interventions

wfuna (42)

2.2 packaging as the largest application of plastics

The packaging sector accounts for annual 30% of the works that package using high respectively being regions and counties (such as 40% in Karope and 35 kit (such as 10% in Karope and 10% in Karope and 35 kit (such as 10% in Karope and 10% in Karope and 35 kit (such as 10% in Karope and 10% in Karope and 35 kit (such as 10% in Karope and 10% in Ka

Plastics packages are widely used for numerous applications because they are relatively durable, light and economical compared with other materials.

The ecconomic implications of plastic packaging are considerable. In 2017 Industry Signers of packaging indicated that 93% of global plastic used was wrigh, 7% recycled (of wrich 94% wise downcycled) and vorthy Sign Mode up in a closed loop, 24 Most of this plastic packaging is used only once and 95% of the value of plastic packaging is used only once and 95% of the value of plastic packaging is used only once and 95% of the value of plastic packaging is used only once and packaging, first the root associated with in performance emissions from its production, is conservatively estimated at USM0 billion among/35.

- 22 UNEP, 2018a. Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach -Stocktaking report. Notten, P. Linked Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.
- 22 UNEP, 2018, Mapping of global plastics value chain and plastics losses to the environment, p.22.

24 UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A global assessment of marine litter and plastic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

25 Ellen MacArthur Foundation, 2016. The New Plastics Economy – Rethinking the future of plastics. https://www.ellenmacarthurfoundation org/our-work/activities/new-plastics-economy/2026-report.





2.2 Did you know that...

Definition of types of packaging: Reusable Packaging is packaging designed to be used multiple times before being discarded.

Did you know that...? Litter is either the consequence of an end user's behaviour, or the lack of available waste management infrastructure to handle plastic waste.

Something to think about: How can the packaging industry collaborate to reduce marine litter?

2.2 Did you know that...

Definition: Negative externalities occur when a transaction has a cost that neither the buyer ransten has a cost that neither the buyer factory may release air pollution into the environment, incurring large social cost that neither the factory owners nor the consumers purchasing their product pay. The same is true of the costs to society that are created by plastic packaging.

Did you know that? Marine plastic pollution costs the global economy billions (estimated to be as much as USD \$13 billion) in damages to fishing, aquaculture, tourism, and clean-up efforts. Coastal regions bear the brunt of these costs. 2



Figure 2.4: Global plastics consumption by application

Packaging as the largest application of plastics



Table: Global plastics consumption distributed on different plastic applications. Source: UNEP (2023): Mapping of global plastics value chain and plastics losses to the environment (with a particular focus on marine environment).



95% of the value of plastic packaging material, worth USD 80-120 billion annually, is lost to the economy.



The cost of negative externalities generated by plastic packaging, plus the cost associated with greenhouse gas emissions from its production, is conservatively estimated at USD 40 billion annually.

Sturce: Ellen MacArthur Foundation (2016). 20 SOLUTIONS IROM THE ONE PLTHE New Plastics Economy - Rethinking the future of plastics. Plastic packaging is also one of the main contributors to marine litter. In terms of marmolastics, cleanum data and plastics production data are consistent in pointing to packaging as the sector that makes the highest contribution to marine plastics. These plastic items are typically small. light and can easily enter the marine environment if littered, Plastic packaging represents more than 62% of all items collected in international coastal clean-up operations 26Many of these packaging items, such as polyethylene terephthalate (PET) bottles and polystyrene (PS) food containers (Styrofoam), are particularly visible due to their buoyant nature and their common presence on beaches. Packaging products are also well documented as being a source of entanglement and ingestion by marine life.

To reduce leakages and potential impacts on the environment, focus should be given to the pollution caused by plastic packaging - the largest application of plastics. Initiatives should not be limited to the end-of-life stage; instead, a systemic approach is needed that includes measures for reducing potential plastic leakages along the entire plastic value chain.

2.3 adopting a systemic approach to prioritize action on plastics

Adopting the value-chain approach27

served as a basis for One Planet network stakeholders to

optimize the impact of the expertise in the network connections between stages. Systemic opportunities to Building on the existing knowledge and available data on address plastic pollution occur at various points in the value the plastics value chain and applications, packaging at the chain and are often interdependent and mutually use stage was identified as the key entry point for the reinforcing. The actions applicable to different stages, as network's collective response.

Box 1: The One Planet network

The One Planet network implements the 10-Year Framework of Programmes on Sustainable Consumption and Production Patterns (10YFP) and is a formally designated implementation mechanism for Sustainable Development Goal (SDG) 12.

As a global multi-stakeholder partnership, it is made up of povernments, civil society, businesses, scientific organizations and international organizations. The and providing tools, knowledge and solutions to deliver on SDG 12

Through its accelerator programmes and the active participation of its stakeholders, the network fosters collaborative and systemic approaches for the implementation of sustainable consumption and

Programmes working together under the One Planet networks plastics initiative and contributing to this

- Sustainable Public Procurement;
- Consumer Information:
- Sustainable Lifestyles and Education:
- Sustainable Tourism; and Sustainable Food Systems

Most plastic is being used for packaging (30%), and the use stage of the plastics value

chain is one of the main stages for plastic leakages into the marine environment (36%).

identify a strategic intervention point to shape actions to A systemic view of the plastics value chain highlights the identified in the UNEP report Recommendations for Systemic Action (2019), are summarized in Figure 2.5. Identified systemic opportunities at the use-stage of the plastics value chain served as a basis for One Planet network stakeholders to frame its collective response

> At the use stage of the plastics value chain, consumer behaviours. This goes hand in hand with the need for

industry to provide consumers with credible sustainability

²⁶ World Economic Forum, Ellen MacAnthur Foundation and McKinsev &

activities by understanding what is happening at different stages of the points and shape corresponding actions that improve natural resource management and achieve multiple sustainability objectives simultaneously

Figure 2.5: Systemic actions along the plastic value chain



information that is clear and reliable,28 and for governments to promote labelling standards to ensure that the information is communicated.29

While the solution to plastic packaging pollution is broader than sustainable communications, clearer sustainability information could play a crucial role in reducing consumer confusion. Consumers' ability to make decisions that consider reusability, recyclability, compostability or use of recycled plastic (or other sustainable feedstock) depends on their access to and trust in this information. Better sustainability information (labels and claims) on plastic packaging and the underlying standards are important tools for informing consumers - individuals, businesses and governments - about packaging materials and proper disposal. Business and governments need to unite to increase the adoption of more effective on-package communications, thereby easing the burden on consumers and empowering them to play a more productive role in the transition towards more sustainable consumption and production patterns, as well as creating a circular economy for plastics. This type of sustainability information is often supplemented by other efforts, including communication campaigns, Effective campaiens can influence purchasing decisions. policy to drive societal shifts. The more effective these campaigns are, the faster society can shift toward sustainable consumption and production. Education and

awareness campaigns are

needed to drive up acceptance of products made from secondary materials and to drive down consumer choice of non-recyclable products and packaging, as well as driving consumer participation in recycling programmes.

At the use stage of the plastics value chain, procurement practices also play a significant role in changing purchasing behaviour and encouraging market shifts, for example by encouraging more circular products and closing the plastics material loop. This has a ripple effect that drives change at different stages of the plastics value chain, affecting business and individual consumers, Adopting a value-chain approach to procurement is a major step in changing procurement practice. This implies not just thinking about what something is made of, where it comes from and who made it: but also, how will it be used, and finally what will happen to the product or material at end of use.Sustainable public procurement can create markets for sustainable solutions and offer a concrete pathway for governments to lead by example. for instance through procurement criteria that reduce the use of plastic packaging in purchasing, and by encouraging demand for secondary reprocessed plastics through the procurement of recycled content in packaging. Through its role in framing the procurement of viable collection and recycling infrastructure and services. nublic producement also influences plastics waste collection policies and their implementation.

2.2 Did you know that...

Citizen-led initiatives, like beach clean-ups and campaigns to reduce single-use plastics, are empowering individuals to take action.

28 UNEP and ITC, 2017. Guidelines for Providing Product Sustainability Information.

29 UNEP, 2019. Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach Recommendations for action, p. 45. wfuna (42)

2.4 building circularity in the plastics value chain

and land are not polluted.

plastics, where plastics attain their highest value along the value chain, no plastics leak and damage the environment and maximal circularity for plastic materials is achieved around the globe.

adhere to the "Reduce. Reuse, Recycle" hierarchy by focusing on the following areas:

· Eliminate problematic and unnecessary plastic products:

 Innovate design production and business models to compostable and free of toxic additives:

· Circulate plastic products at their highest value within

Stakeholders of the One Planet network identified The New Plastics Frances Global Commitment lad by the Ellen MacArthur Foundation in collaboration with UNEP, as an initiative to be leveraged in defining a common agenda and priority actions. As mentioned in UNEP's report From Pollution to Solution.30 the Global Commitment unites more than 500 businesses, governments and other organizations behind a shared long-term vision of promoting sustainable consumption and production of plastics and building circularity in the plastics value chain Businesses 20% of the plastic packaging market and have committed to an ambitious set of 2025 targets to: eliminate unnecessary plastic; innovate so all necessary plastics are designed to be safely reused, recycle, or composted; and circulate everything that is used to keep it in the economy and out of the environment

in guiding high-level targets, and in driving convergence in where plastics are kept at a high value and the oceans, rivers implementing a circular economy for plastic, led to the adoption of these commitments as the key principles for the One Planet Network-Wirle Plastics Initiative

> With regards to plastic packaging, the common agenda adopted by the One Planet network aims to achieve the

packaging through redesign, innovation and new delivery models as a priority

· Reuse models are applied where relevant, reducing the need for single-use packaging

All plastic packaging is 100% reusable, recyclable or

· All plastic packaging is reused, recycled or

. The use of plastic is fully decoupled from the

· All plastic packaging is free of hazardous chemicals, and the health, safety and rights of all involved are respected.

Shared understanding through common definitions

The key principles contain terms such as "reusable", "recyclable", "compostable", "renewable" and "recycled content". To foster transparency and consistency of actions across the network, it was important to agree on a set of common definitions. These were drawn from the extensive review of existing definitions, detailed discussions with experts and a broad stakeholder-review process undertaken by The Global Commitment, Figure 3.6 summarizes some key terms related to plastic packaging as used for this report: Anney 1 contains the complete list of definitions in use by the network.

2.4 Something to think about

Definition: Circular Economy is an economic system aimed at minimizing waste that promotes the continual use of resources by reusing, recycling, and refurbishing products and materials in order to eliminate or significantly reduce waste. Unlike the traditional linear economy model-where resources are extracted used and then discarded-a circular economy focuses on keeping products, materials, and resources in use for as long as possible.

Something to think about: How can we achieve a plastics Circular Economy?

2.4 Something to think about

What's the difference between the following terms "Reusable" "reovclable" "compostable" and "renewable"? Refer to chapter five for detailed definitions (from page 59 to 62. definitions are highlighted).

³⁰ UNEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A slobal assessment of marine

²¹ Ellen MacArthur Foundation, https://www.newplasticseconomy.org/











Definition

- It is not reusable, recyclable or compostable (as per the definitions below).
 It contains, or its manufacturing requires,
- It contains, or its manufacturing requires, hazardous chemicals that pose a significant risk to human health or the environment (applying the precautionary principle).
- 3. It can be avoided (or replaced by a reuse
- 4. model) while maintaining utility.
- It hinders or disrupts the recyclability or compostability of other items.
 It has a high likelihood of being littered o ending up in the natural environment.

Packaging that has been designed to accomplish or proves its ability to accomplish a minimum number of trips or rotations in a system for reuse. A system for reuse defined as established arrangements (organizational, technical or financial) that ensure the possibility of reuse, in closed-loop, open-loop or in a hybrid system, as defined in ISO 18003:2013.

Packaging or a packaging component is recyclable if its successful post-consumer collection, sorting and recycling are proven to work in practice and at scale. The threshold suggested to prove recycling works 'in practice and at scale' is a 30% zpostconsumer recycling rate achieved across multiple regions, collectively representing at least 400 milion inhabitants.

Packaging or a packaging component is composible if is in complexatione with relevant international compositability standards and if its successful postconsumer collection, sorting and composing are proven to work in practice and at scale. The threshold algested to prove composing works in practice agrees multiple regions, collectively representing at least 400 million inhabitent; 32

12 Ellen MacArthur Foundation, https://www.ellenmacarthurfoundation.org/assets/downloads/13339-Global-Commitment-Definitions.pdf.



2.5 developing recommendations for implementing a common agenda for plastic pollution

Following the principles of a circular economy for plastics, programmes of the One Planet network asked partners to formulate priority recommandations under three areas at the use stage (identified as having gaps in addressing plastic pollution)31

- Sustainability information: standards, labels and claims on plastic packaging
- Triggers for behaviour change: assessment of plastic pollution campaigns and green nudging
- (1) Sustainable procurement practices.

Even when addressing the use stage of the plastics value chain, these areas are seen as triggers that could drive change across the entire plastics value chain by boosting the availability of sustainable options. They can shape the operations of actions by driving innovation, improved design for rease, accelerated degradability, recyclability and ultimately a reduction in leakage and plastic pollution.

To develop an informed understanding of the situation and formulate relevant recommendations, programmes coordinated the development of:

 Global mapping and assessment of standards, labels and claims on plastic packaging led by the Consumer Information programme

- Global mapping and assessment of plastic pollution campaigns led by the Sustainable Lifestyles and Education programme.
- Guidance on procurement of plastics packaging led by the Sustainable Public Procurement programme.

Recommendations by One Planet network programmes set the foundations for a continued alignment of stakeholders around the plastic packaging issue, for sharing knowledge and ideas to overcome barriers, and for developing further guidance and evidence for change.

These resources have informed actions to tackle plastic pollution in the tourism sector, which is recognized as a key source of marine litter and plastic pollution. Within the framework of the Sustailabil Sourcim Programme, UINEP and the World Tourism Organization (UNWTO), in colaboration with the Bilm MacAthum Frundation, implemented the Global Tourism Plastics initiative (GTPH) to address the root causes of plastic pollution in the sector and act as the tourism sector interface of the New Plastics Economy Dobal Commitment.

Figure 3.7: Addressing pollution from plastic packaging at the use stage of the value chain across the One Planet network 10



33 UNEP, 2019. Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach - Recommendations for action, p. 34.



CHAPTER THREE

SOLUTIONS TO REDUCE THE USE OF PLASTIC PACKAGING





Summary: Chapter 3

This chapter presents solutions to curb plastic packaging pollution, focusing on providing consumers with reliable information, encouraging sustainable public procurement by governments, and engaging consumers and key industrise, particularly tourism. The chapter emphasizes the role of education, awareness campaigns, and behavior change strategies to reduce plastic use.

3.1 providing reliable and quality information to consumers

The core function of lubble and claims on plates, parading should be provide wildles, indivenze, clara, transparent and accessible information. In doing its, they are also accessible information in the strategies of and a clarable accession. As of the recommendations and a clarable accession, strate of the strategies of parading clarad on the the strategies of the strategies of the strategies and the strategies of the strategies of the strategies and the strategies with the strategies of the strategies and the strategies with the strategies of the strategies of the strategies with the strategies of the strategies of the strategies with the strategies of the strategies of the strategies with the strategies of the strategies of the strategies with the strategies of the strategies with the strategies of the strate

Figure 3.1: Definitions of standard, certification, label and claim

- Standard refers to specific criteria or norms of material goods or services, including packaging, which may also serve as benchmarks.
- Certifications refers to a formal accreditation process, in which it is confirmed that the certified entity or product/package meets a given set of (minimum) standards.
- Label describes a logo or stamp highlighting a product or service's specific characteristics, which may also be used as a form of trademark. A label may or may not represent a certification.
- Claim refers to assertions made by companies about beneficial qualities or characteristics of their goods and services.

Sources: (ISO 14020); (UN Environment and ITC 2017); (Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development [OECD] 2011)

3.1.1 Following the Guidelines for Providing Product Sustainability Information in plastic packaging communications

Businesses (including manufacturers, suppliers and retailers) should take steps to ensure their labels and claims correspond with the five fundamental principles of the Guidelines described in Figure 4.2 as a minimum.

In assessing the labels and claims found on plastic packaging, the analysis found wide variations in terms of whether they met the five fundamental principles outlined Information: reliability, relevance, clarity, transparency and arreschillty. Most labels were identified as having a combination of well and poorly designed elements, or the experts consulted disagreed on whether the labels could be categorized as good or bad. Two conclusions can be drawnfrom this observation. First, even among experts, communications are inherently subjective and depend on different experiences and understandings. This highlights the importance of clear guidance developed through an international consensus-finding process, such as the Guidelines for Providing Product Sustainability Information. Second, it shows that there is considerable room for improvement for most consumer-facing sustainability communications on plastic packaging.

3.1 Something to think about

What's the difference between the fundamental principles referred to a reliability, relevance, clarity, transparency and accessfully? (Refer to false 2 in page 28 to accessfully?) (Refer to false 2 in page 28 to plantic products based on these fundamental principles contribute to reducing mininformation regarding plantic beading of plantic postubant is that chandraining the baseling of plantic plantics based on the fundamental plantic plantics based on the fundamental plantic plantics based on the fundamental plantics plantics based on the fundamental fundament

Figure 3.2: Principles for providing product sustainability

²⁴ UNEP and Consumers International, 2020. Can I Recycle This? A Global Mapping and Assessment of Standards, Labels and Claims on Plastic Packaging.

information

Fundamental	Description	How the Principle Applies to Labels and Claims on Plastic Parkading and Disposable Front Ware
67%	Build your claims on a reliable basis Accurate and scientifically true Robust and consistent Substantiated data and assumptions 	 Is the label's claim consistent with applied methods and standards? Does the label accurately communicate packaging antibulies? Is the label substantiated by scientific evidence?
RELEVANCE	Talk about major improvements, in areas that matter Significant aspects (hotpots) covered Not masking poor product parformance, no burden shifting Genuine benefit which goes beyond legal compliance	 Does the label allow the consumer to evaluate the sustainability of the packaging? is the label relevant to the packaging? is the label relevant to the local context?
	Make the information useful for the consumer - Exclusive and direct link between claim - and product Explicit and easy to - understand Limits of claim clearly state	 Does the label clearly and simply communicate what is mean? Is there text or iconography that explains the label? Does the label communicate the proper handling of the packaging? Does the label contain enough information to correctly guide consumer d behaviour?
TRANSPARENCY	Satisfy the consumer's appetite for information, and do not hide - Developer of the claim and provider of evidence published Traceability and - generation of claim (methods, sources, etc.) published - Confidential information open to competent bodies	 Is the label based on a third party standard or verification process? Is the information provided comprehensible the consumer and can the label be evaluated by the consumer?
	Let the information get to the consumer not the other way around Clearly visible: claim easily found Readily accessible: claim dose to the	 Is the label easy to read? After there size specifications that companies must comp with when applying the label? Is the label translated into local language?

Desirable: three dimensions of sustainability, behaviour change and longer term impact, multi-channel and innovative approach, collaboration and comparability.

wfuna 🥢



Table 3: Summary of Aspirational Principles

Aspirational Principle	Description	Commentary on Assessed Labels and Claims
THE THREE DIMENSIONS OF SUSTAINABILITY	Show the complete picture of product scatainability economic Environmental, social, and dimension considered Burden shifting between the dimensions avoided Complementary certification schemes combined	 Assessed labels and claims primarily focused on the environmental dimension of sustainability.
BEHAVIOUR CHANGE AND LONGER-TERM IMPACT	Help move from information to action Insights from behavioural science applied Consumers actively encouraged to play a role, where appropriate Longer-term relationship built with consumer	 On package recycling labels help inform consumers about part action. Providing cuedble information about plastic packaging cun guide consumers towards more sustainable behaviour in particulase decisions, product usage and disposal of a product.
MULTI-CHANNEL AND INNOVATIVE APPROACH	Engage with consumers in diverse ways Various complementary communication channels used Different user groups addressed with different channels Not overloading the consumer with information	 On-package labels and claims can be an effective component of a multi-channel approach. Multi-channel and other innovative approaches may also be a helpful toil in locariastion of disposal guidance for consumers as they can provide more loally customised information, as well as providing waying amounts of information depending on ordismulti retexest.
COLLABORATION	Work with others to increase acceptance and credibility Broad range of stakeholders included in claim development and communication Joint communication channels employed inclusive language used to make consumers feel part of a movement	 Evaluation of the label or claim development process is outside the scope of this report.
COMPARABILITY	Help consumers choose between similar products - Product comparisons must be objective and useful for the consumer - Participane's in collaborative approaches - Make sure that product comparisons are based on very stict and objective nules relevant to the specific product	 Except for labels and claims that provide specific triveriotids within the same orthoma (e.g. per cent recycled control, comparability is gains difficult. A comparison of platicity particular and the implications of the packaged products and the implications of its products in process to evaluate overall suscitability. However, this level of detailed information is susally unavailability or too complex to be communicated by consumers.

3.1.2 Harmonizing definitions about the content and reusability of plastic packaging at a global level

There should be globally consistent definitions on the content and reusability of plastic packaging in standards. Labels and claims should be updated to reflect these.

One of the classest message to emerge from the consultation and accessment water that the controf state of the operading provide the control state of the operading proof his problem. In the the difference is a single problem of his problem is the the difference is a single problem of the difference of the problem of the decisions such as recycled or "tocare problem of the problem of the content is compare the scatability characteristics of the content of the problem of the content of the problem of the decisions specification of problem of the content of the problem of the decisions specification of the problem of the content of the decisions specification of the problem of the content of the decisions of the problem of the problem of the content of the decisions of the problem of the problem of the content of the decisions of the problem of the problem of the content of the decisions of the problem of the problem of the content of the decisions of the problem of the problem of the decisions of the

3.1.3 Standards, labels and claims need to better reflect real conditions

The definitions and technical requirements used in standards on recyclability, compostability and biodegradability should better reflect real world conditions and he more attentive to accessibility. Where possible, claims and labels should be based on recognized national or international standards.

While consumers would benefit from greater consistency in terms of information about the content and appropriate use of plastic packaging, information about proper disposal should better reflect the local conditions that consumers experience. The assessment showed that there are currently two key conbiens in this area:

- There is a discrepancy between the context of clams and what is likely to happen to that packaging in real life, particularly in terms of composciability and loodegradability. This is problematic for industrial composters and for people carrying out backyoid composities, Consumers may also missianly litter these plastic items if they do not understand the need for specific conditions of decomposition.
- 2 Guidance on proper disposal is only relevant if consumers have access to the facilities and indirativiture needed for such processing lust as the Elen Machetur Foundation's distribution of recyclable' in practice and as call? the same circles ahoud apply to claims regarding composability. While biologicability encompasses a slightly different process, the need for items to be parcially biologicabilities is due relevant.

3.1.4 Restricting the use of the "chasing arrows" symbol to indicate recyclability

Businesses using the "thising arrowd" design for claims other than recyclubility should redesign their image-based communications without the arrows. In circumstances where legislation or regulation still mandate the use of outdated triangular design. The design of labels and logos should seek to minimize the potential for misiterspretation.

The mapping and assessment highlighted design practices that increase consumer contuition. Two examples are the Green Dot and the outdated but still widely used resin codes; both use the "chasing arrows" in their design but do not indicate recyclability for consum-sets.

Figure 3.3: Problematic design practices in plastic packaging

Universal Symbol for Recycling



Original Resins Identification Codes



This is a problematic but faily weldspread practice. The expert consultation highlighted that (consumer, highlighted microsoft constraints, and the second second second constraints, and the second second second second second oversetimate how may be serve a registration weldship of higher levels of constraints of the second second second highlight levels of constraints of the second second second consumer confidence in regoring, in general, it is crucial that tables of maging related to consider the percende about containability and designed to consider the percende major grade and percendence of the second second about containability and designed to consider the percendence of the second second second second second second second about containability and designed to consider the percendence of the second second

3.1 Something to think about

What steps can the UN and Member States take to harmonize definitions about the content and reusability of plastic packaging at a global level to make it easier to compare the sustainability characteristics of one product's packaging to another and reduce consumer confusion?

3.1 Something to think about

What types of facilities and plastic waste management infrastructure would be needed to make it possible to recycle plastics on a large scale?

Did you know that...? Scientists are exploring biodegradable plastics made from algae, mushrooms, or corn. However, the production scale and costs remain challenges.





3.1.5 Informative and verified recycling guidance labels and enforcement of proper use

Businesses should use recycluble plant; packagin; adopt andpergaphically relearn recycling guidance tabal commit to placing it on all packages at a readable size. The organizations managing thesis labels chuid explore further aligning requirements and design of their labels to minimize comparise. Governments med to support recycling efforts by prividing the necessary infrastructure and introducing policies to ensure consumers follow recycling guidance in a proper way.

The mapping and assessment highlighted good design

practice the help consumer do the right thing, for example, recycling galaxies labels and a site Moundant label and the Antradation Recycling Labels were considered informative and a calaxies. The labels in the distribution in anyong the the adoption of these labels in the source former augustation the adoption of these labels has sourced more submitted adoption of these labels has sourced more exampled these into adoption of these labels has possible for informer anyong anyong the source of the source of consummation in recycling situation by planary stating that an informer of the source of the source of the source of the moundain the source of the s



"CAN I RECYCLE THIS?"



Provides a global mapping of standards and onpacking labels and chains related to placks packaging. Chastas a framework to categorize labels and claims by typh, focus, geography and their relovant characteristics, Assesses how well the on-package labels and claims sign with the claims for how the second state of the second state of the forument and Istemational Trade Centre (TC) (2021), and Istematics caponicalities to use standards, labels and claims to more effectively tackle plastic polation.

Can I Recycle This? A Global Mapping and Assessment of Standards. Labels and Claims on Plastic Packaping report

 Builts on the Clusifience for Providing Product Sustainability Information (Complemented by a set of case studies with illustrative detailed assessment of labels found on plastic packaging). Used for the development of a series of 3 Key Message Pagens for Builtiesses, Couvernment and Standardstotes and labeling organizations to effectively indefende the Sneormendations of the report.



Box 3.1: Good practice - Case 1

	Australasian Recycling Label (ARL)
Sector	Retail Australia and New Zealand
Region	The APR: provides relevant disposal information for each material, as most packaging is composed of more than one element (with various implications for recyclability).
Best Practice	The Australasian Recycling Label (ARL) Program is an initiative of the Australian Packaging
	Covenant Organisation (APCO), alongside Planet Ark and the Packaging
Recyclability	The ARL Program is an evidence-based national labelling programme for Australia and New Zealand that provides consumers with accurate recycling information and helps brands to de and label packaging for recyclability. The ARL features on products in supermarkets and othe nativitation stross and features there main relacciferations?
Evaluation Portal (PREP) Design	Recyclable - This can be placed in consumer's kerbside recycling (left-hand image). Conditionally recyclable - Can be recycled if the instructions below the symbol are followed (middle image).
	Not recyclable -This cannot be placed in kerbside recycling (see right-hand image).

The ARL Program was launched in 2018, and more than 460 businesses had signed up by 2020



PRINCIPLE 1: RELIABILITY

The ARL is the only evidence-based labelling system on the Australian and New Zealand market and is supported by PREP. which is an online tool that assesses packaging recyclability in Australia and New Zealand. The PREP tool assesses each piece of packaging against the number of people that can recycle it via their council collection, the potential for the packaging to be accurately sorted and the end markets available for the material. Kerbside access levels are determined using the data from RecyclingNearYou.com.au, which are updated annually.

Build your claims on a reliable basis

- Accurate and scientifically true
- Robust and consistent
- Substantiated data and assumptions

The ARL can only be used by businesses once they have completed a PREP assessment. The evidence supplied by PREP leads to the classification of plastic packaging into the three categories and it can then be labelled accordingly



PRINCIPLE 2: RELEVANCE

The ARL is currently a voluntary programme. The PREP tool simulates the recycling system and can evaluate the technical recyclability of a package based on weight, shape, size, inks and glues. Adoption of the ARL addresses a significant aspect of environmental sustainability by maximizing efforts to achieve cleaner recycling streams

Talk about major improvements in areas that matter

- Significant aspects ("hotspots") covered
- The programme helps brand owners to design packaging that is recyclable at the end-of-life, thereby contributing
- Not masking poor product performance, no burden shiftion
- Genuine benefit that goes beyond legal compliance



3.2 Did you know that...

- 44% of consumers say the Australasian Recycling Label (ARL) encourages them to recycle more than they do.
- · The ARL is helping to cut confusion around problematic materials, e.g. 60% of aluminum foil was correctly disposed with ARL vs 40% without the ARL.



The ARI movides clear specific and relevant information to the consumer by identifying the specific parkaging common the label is referring to, for example, "Bag", For "conditionally recyclable" items, simple instructions are provided on the label to inform consumers about any additional steps required before recycling an item. For example, "Store Drop Off", Awareness and understanding of the label are tested annually to track understanding of the programme.

Make the information useful for the consumer

- Exclusive and direct link between claim and product
- Explicit and easy to understand
- Limits of claim clearly stated

The ARL is easily seen on-pack and separated visually across three classifications:the "recyclable"label has a coloured/ opaque recycling symbol, the "conditionally recyclable" label has a transparent recycling symbol and contains further instructions, and the "not recyclable" label includes the bin symbol. This consistency helps consumers to recognize and understand the labels and recycling



INCIPLE 4: TRANSPARENCY

The process of creating the labels, how the availability of collection services is accounted for and what each symbol stands for is made available on the ARL website. The website contains an information page containing details about how the label is created through the PREP tool and where data are sourced.

Satisfy the consumer's appetite for information, rather than hiding

- Developer of the claim and nonvider of evidence of mithished.
- Traceability and neneration of claim sublished (methods Confidential information open to competent bodies

information is made available on the website about what consumers should do when they find instructions beneath "conditionally recyclable" items, such as "return to store: return this item to the soft plastics collection bins at any Coles or Woolworths store in Australia only".



PRINCIPLE 5: ACCESSIBILITY



The label is clearly visible on the packaping, easy to find at the moment of purchase and the URL is always included on the label. Information about how the labels work is made available via the ARL website, which is displayed on the product packaging (see image opposite). Programme members can also supply an alternative website for further information on recycling and the APL such as woolworths.com.au/vecvcling. Consumer messaging and campaign resources are tested regularly using focus group testing.

Let the information reach the consumer, not the other way around

- Clearly visible: claim easily found
- · Readily accessible: claim close to the product, and at the required time and location

The ARL gives assurance to consumers by addressing the different materials used and whether they can be readily separated by consumers. The "conditionally recyclable" label is supported with short phrases to give clearer instructions to consumers.

- Make further information about the label available on a website and list the URL on-oack.
- For any "conditionally recyclable" items, provide simple and easy instructions for consumers on pack and make further details available
- Consistent use of symbols and specific phrases ensure clarity and help consumers. Collaborate with relevant partners involved in the recycling system for reliable, localized data.

Box 3.1: Good practice - Case 2

2	P	2	

Underwriters Laboratory's (UL) Environmental Claim Validation / UL Recycled Content Validation label

Case study can be consulted here

	с;	

Manufacturing sector Global The UL Recycled Content Validation label enables products to showcase recycling efforts and

incorporating recycled

content into the product, and also incorporates social and economic implications into its criteria.

The Underwrites: Laboratory (UL)'s Environmental Claim Validation (ECV) service and label test a manufacturer's product and validate the environmental claims made in marketing and packaging materials, including claims on recycleid content (see image opposite).

Manufacturers can evaluate recycled content to UL's 2809, an Environmental Claim Validation Procedure (ECVP) that evaluates the amount of recycled content in products including:

Best Practic

- Post-consumer recycled content
- Pre-consumer (post-industrial) recycled content
- Closed-loop recycled content
- Total recycled content.

Receiving the recycled claim validation means that products can feature the UL Environmental Claim Validation label on their packaging and marketing materials – this label is displayed in the image above.



RINCIPLE 1: RELIABILITY

The UL Environment provides independent, third-party, science-based validation on a product's environmental claims and helps demonstrate its sustainability efforts. The third-party certification is based on stringent standards and requirements to help deliver coddleb green messaging.

Build your claims on a reliable basis

- Accurate and scientifically true
- Robust and consistent
- Substantiated data and assumptions

The UL reaches 2 billion global consumers annually with safety, security and sustainability messages, while the UL labels appear on tens of billions of products globally.



RINCIPLE 2: RELEVANCE

The UL 2809 Standard specifically measures the amount of recycled content in products and validates pre-consumer and/or post-consumer defined source material content, which informs and assures consumers that validated products are made with recycled materials.

Talk about major improvements in areas that matter

- Significant aspects ("hotspots") covered
- Not masking poor product performance, no burden shifting
- Genuine benefit that opes beyond legal compliance

UL 2020 originally measured the preventage of necycled content and has been updated to include assessments of the social impacts of collecting pre-consumer and postporties for coast-bound and coast-societad plastics. If a product meets the criteria and issues the label on the packaging, then consumers will be able to use the website lasted on-pack to find car how the company created the lasted on-pack to find car how the company created the lasted on-pack to find car how the company created the lasted on-pack to find car how the company created the lasted on-pack to find car how the company created the lasted on-pack to find car how the company created the lasted on-pack to find car how the company created the



The UL Validation intends to combat "greenwashing" by ensuring the claims manufacturers make are substantiated. The presence of the label helps consumers feel confident that the products they are choosing are accurate and the minimum recycled content is stated within the label.

Make the information useful for the consumer

- product Explicit and easy to understand Limits of
- · claim clearly stated

The UL website is clearly displayed on the label and directs

consumers to a page that includes an overview of the products UL certifies, brochures and a whitepaper on 'Making Effective Sustainability Claims'.

Consumers can also retrieve data on the UL SPOT®

Product Guide, an online tool that connects consumers with credible product information and enables them to

identify sustainable products by product category, company name, product name or type of claim.



PRINCIPLE 4: TRANSPARENCY

To find information about UL certified products and components, users can access the UL Product iQ: this provides users with free access to thousands of UL certified products, components and materials, and enables users to compare between products.

Satisfy the consumer's appetite for information, rather than hiding

· Developer of the claim and provider of evidence of

Traceability and generation of claim published

- (methods, sources and so on)
- Confidential information open to competent bodies

PRINCIPLE 5: ACCESSIBILITY

The label is clearly visible on the packaging and is close to the product and at the required time and location (insofar as it features on-pack). The label states the minimum recycled content, thereby providing consumers with clear information about the product's

Let the information reach the consumer, not the other way around

- · Clearly visible: claim easily found
- Readily accessible: claim close to the product, and at the required time and location

The presence of the label helps consumers to make more environmentally conscious purchasing decisions whilst also recognizing

Key learnings

- Providing clear information in the text below the label to inform consumers of the direct sustainable attribute.
- The oriteria for the UL2809 includes social and economic impacts which other standard-setters/labelling organizations can emulate

Self-assess your plastic packaging label using the self-assessment tool available on the One Planet Network website.



Figure 3.4: Simplified procurement cycle



Source Ridocuterstat/Sustainable Chila/Resources/EU BIR Crol

3.2 governments leading by example and steering market transformation through public procurement

Public procurement represents an average of 13% of granitational (EDP) in councils of the Diganisation for Economic Gooperation and Operations of the Council Council of the Council GD in developing councils - and annual to the of total government expenditure.35 ff used strategically, it is a spraticularly important lever in driving forward sustainable consumption and production, accelerating behaviour change, innovation and performance behaviour change, innovation and performance operations.

Addressing the challenge of plattic paradiging through porcuments in more affective as par of a wide sustainable procument policy within organizations that adopts an integrated and whole Ha approach to the inspacts of procuments. Good procuments sustainable procument and names and a strainable paradic strain becomes and names and a strainable applications and the non-discriminatory, competitive, accountable, monkers an efficience use of plattic India and simplication. Tenders shows and allow ensure that suppliers understand and align with these policy goals.

35 Public procurement, OECD 2020

Box 3.2: Sustainable Public Procurement definitio

A process whereby public organizations meet their needs for goods, services, works and utilises in a way that achieves values for money on a whole Ne cycle basis in terms of generating benefits not only to the organization, but also to society and the economy, whilst significantly needucing negative impacts on the environment.

Procurement actions include, but are not limited to, embedding requirements on the procurement of plactic packaging in sustainable procurement policies, and setting out green public procurement criteria in tenders that relates directly or indirectly to packaging. Actions relate to the whole procurement cyclic pro-procurement; tendering and award; and contract management (see Figure 3-4).

3.2 Something to think about

Definition: Public procurement Refers to the process by which government and public institutions purchase goods and services. It can be a powerful tool to drive usatianable consumption and production (SCP). In procurement elicitons, public entities can influence markets, encourage innovation, and promote environmentally and acioally responsible practices across industries Something to think about: How can we address the challenge of plastic packaging result?



Figure 3.5: Applying waste hierarchy principles to procuring plastics



Source: Procuring the Future: Sustainable Procurement National Action Plan. Department for Environment, Food and Runal Attains (DEFRA), United Kingdom, 2008.

3.2.1 Planning an approach to plastic packaging as the first step of the procurement exercise

Tacking the plants packaging challings through procurements, the guives install plants before the transferring stage determine actions, target areas for action and identify who is responsible for diskinging the actions within the procurement cycle. Reaming involves with instem calculations and disket thing the instal and existing. These in numbers of all identifying the instal and existing of the plant installing of plants packaging with the installing and and identifying the instal and existing of the plants and and plants and any stage of the installing of the plants of plants packaging who the plant del to install and the plants have at its used across the government's purchasing of goods and services.

Understanding where the impacts of unnecessary and problematic plastic packaging arise through procurement presents a challenge, as packaging is typically not the primary subject matter in the purchasing decision. Procurement influences the impact of plastic packaging in three ways:

 Direct purchasing – this is purchasing plastics packaging for the purpose of packaging, for example as part of catering service requirements. Food and beverage packaging accounts for the majority of direct packaging purchasing. 36 for example in the provision of food services in health and education; and catering services for staff canteens, meetings, conferences and events.

Indirect purchasing – purchasing products to red just boot products but also office consumables, information and communications technologies, building and maintenance products and cleaning supplies) packaged in single-use plastic packaging. Packageng provides a valuable role in protecting the products that are the direct subject matter of the tender.

Encouraging demand for secondary reprocessed plattice, for example through their regulations for tracked of the sample through their regulations for the plattice second second second second second collection and recycling inflatticuture and services. This is funding through the procursment of values assos collection and recycling inflatticuture and services. This funding second second second second second public sector fourtex. Wate and recycling inflatticutures may be owned by the same collection as an work from the private sector. Ether way, the average percentage of advary years.

³⁶ WRAP Cymru Ceredigion Catering Consumables Final report. WCR101-003, 2019.

³⁷ Improving Markets for Recycled Plastics. OECD, 2018.



The waste hierarchy contributes to the circular economy by retaining value at the highest levels and helping to close material loop. The waste hierarchy prioritizes the management of problematic plastics by ranking options according to environmental impact, with prevention being the preferable option and lamdfill as the base resort.

Procurers can take unilateral action or be part of a wider team. Good market, engagement, will enable procurers to addressing plastics. Actions should be prioritized according to understand the market's capability to meet circular wates hierarchy principles: prioritiples around reducing the dependency on plastics and

a. Reduce – eliminate the use of unnecessary plastic packing in the first place by challenging the need to purchase items using plastic such as in packaging.

b. Reuse – where procurers cannot avoid plastic packaging, for example in the health sector and for some food items, then plastic items should be reusable, where feasible.

c. Recycle – plastic items should be fully recyclable and fully recycled. Ensure that only those polymers that are easily recycled within local waste systems are specified and that compostable packaging is only used where the right facilities exist.

d. Recover or lond(W – ensure that only items that are difficult to eliminate or recycle are effectively captured for energy recovery (where it exists) or landfill to avoid leakage through insentional or unintentional littering.

3.2.3 Engaging early with suppliers and markets

Communicating with suppliers and markets early in the tender process encourages transparency and prepares them to meet changing demands. Bybes suppliers the opportunity to communicate any possible downstream impacts and contributes to an understanding of where the plastic packaging hotspots are and what types of plastics are being used.

Good market engagement will enable procurers to understand the market's capability to meet circular the impacts from plantics. This will help procures assess whether to set more functional requirements anound the products and services required for a given tender. The better the supplier's understanding of circular economy products and service required for a given tender. The better the supplier's understanding of circular economy products and service reduction day advanted autositor on the saded in the service. This enables the market to differ more challence.

Procurers must also consult and collaborate with suppliers to ensure compliance from suppliers covered by any national legislation and voluntary agreements. Participation in eligible voluntary agreements, for example, could also be used as part of award criteria.



wfuna (42)

3.2.4 Setting requirements for plastics

should ensure that the procurement of products containing plastics includes relevant requirements for:

Reducing use of harmful substances - for example by

Increasing recyclability - by avoiding composite

- 2. materials, polymers that are hard to recycle and plastics with black/near black colour (except when made from recycled plastics) as these complicate . recycling processes.
- 3. Extending the useful life of products through repair and reuse, whenever feasible, to reduce the carbon footprint of procurement and to reduce the impacts of new plastic.

Increasing demand for recycled plastic - by specifying inclusion of recycled content, where practical, to help encourage uses for reprocessed plastic from recycling,

Procurement criteria relating to plastics may be covered with different parts of the tender process. for example, as part of:

- Supplier selection:
- Technical specification requirements:
- · Contract management and performance clauses.

Criteria relating to plastics may compromise one or a combination, of the following elements:

- Parkneing punidance or elimination of certain plastic polymers or forms. Criteria may also be used to ensure that suppliers are complying with mandatory requirements and providing explanations for the products offered, for example packaging formats and materials. To eliminate the reliance on single-use plastic packaging, criteria may also specify an alternative or substitute, selected through a full life-cycle assessment that compares the environmental impacts of different materials and avoids unintended trade-offs
- · Recycled content setting levels, where applicable, to augid or reduce the use of virgin polymers.

should also encourage bidders to substitute hard-torecycle plastics materials and propose alternatives to non-recyclable plastic polymers and items in their responses. Procurers can minimize the potential for waste by using the following criteria:

- The plastic packaging materials are readily recyclable and will be recycled through local collection and recurling infrastructure or are fully traceable if not
- Plastic packaging consists of PET, PP, HDPE, LDPE or PS - These can consist of both biobased and fossil raw materials.
- Toxicity to reduce the dependency on, and impacts from additives such as colourants fillers plasticizers stabilizers and flame retardants. The procurement of goods and services should also avoid purchasing plastic packaging that may contaminate other plastic waste streams to make recycling impossible or commercially unviable. Standards like EN 13432 for compostable packaging 38 can help with verification in tenders to ensure that compostable packaging biodegrades effectively in industrial/in vessel composting conditions and is distinguishable from other biodegradable but non-compostable materials.
- Identifying recycling solutions to encourage bidders

to propose collection and recycling solutions that reduce plastic waste, for example take-back packaging schemes. Plastic items recovered by suppliers should either he reused recycled or as a last resort disnosed of responsibly. These requirements should be supported by contract management clauses covering continual improvement and reporting of recycling rates. Verification validate the relevant product data to assess how, and if, these products can be recycled/disposed locally.

3.2.5 Building capacity to shift practices towards more sustainable public procurement

Addressing the use of plastic packaging through procurement is more than just setting criteria and requirements in tenders. It involves shifting practices towards more sustainable procurement and adopting a more strategic role for procurement in delivering rather than hindering policies and commitments. An investment in people as well as processes enables sustainable procurement to be more clearly recognized as strategic for policy delivery, for example in encouraging a more circular economy.39

3.2 Something to think about

How can public procurement incentivize businesses to adopt more sustainable practices?

⁻ The packaging consists of one polymer or plastic polymers that are separate from each other (not Following the circular and waste hierarchy principles, procurers composite or bonded) and other packaging materials.

³⁸ EN 13432 'Packaging: requirements for packaging recoverable through





When building capacity, it is vital to think in terms of the broader procument cycle to identify the wide range of roles and stakeholders relevant to different stages and decision points in the procurement cycle. This should include baseling a working innowledge of sustainable procurement principles across the organization - not just within the encourement function.

The importance of product sustainability information

Procures face the challenge of detertifying the type of packaging material in the face of initied duta from suppliers and manufacturers, while the latter are also challenge by multiple sources, producers and packaging formats. Information and training for procures are necessary to ensure that platter packaging waters arising from the second second second second second second formation and the second second second second technologies. Better and none accessible information around packaging materials is key to informing purchasing decisions and addressing this challenge.

Standards, certification and labels can help procures in verification and evaluation and avoid the unintended consequences of innovation in polymers and packaging formats, such as the mixing of compostable, biodegradable and fossil-based plastic packaging in recycling operations.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES BOX Sustainable Public Procurement of Plastics. The Rijkswaterstaat, Netherlands, on behalf of the UN One Planet Network Sustainable Public Procurement programme, 2022

Sustainable Public Procurement of Plastics



The guide is aimed at procurement practitioners responsible for embedding and implementing policies to reduce the impact of problematic and unnecessary plastic through their procurement advisies. This covers the development and implementation of approaches for intentifying where single-use plastics occur within procurement speed areas and actions acturd bandreign to help reduce the level of plastics and their impacts within public sector procurement.

The guidance may also be of use for policymakers in

understanding the role sustainable public procurement can play in mitigating single-use plastic and contributing towards the delivery of a more circular economy and sustainable consumption and production through the closure of plastic materials loops.

Sustainable Public Procurement of Plastics Guidance



3.3 engaging households and consumers in the fight against plastic packaging pollution

Campaigns by governments and

intergovernmental organizations, non-protte groups, fondations and busines have correlated to increased awareness and action on plattic pollution. Bayond awareness, however, campigns zura a mechaniem for influencing individual choice and bahaviour by playing an important role in the sight towards more sustantials costaurpoint and production. It is therefore estantial to play in charging mindest to identify storegies that are effective in suring awareness and concern into behaviour charges.

To this effect, the Sustainable Lifestyles and Education programme carried out a global mapping and assessment of plastic pollution campaigns targeting individuals. A review of the scientific literature, articles and surveys examining what can effectively shift people's bahaviour revealed three important findings. Campaigns targeting plastic pollution:

- are making mistakes based on outdated beliefs about what works;
- are leveraging several strategies that work but could do more to maximize effectiveness; and
- must be careful in their use of strategies that could backfire, or prove to be double-edged swords.

Insights reveal a set of effective strategies, "watch-outs" (things to be careful of) and common mistakes that campaign designers should consider as they craft campaigns for influencing individuals' consumption of plastic.

Figure 3.6: Definitions of campaign

A campaign is defined as: An organized course ofaction formulated to achieve a particular result through one or more communications channels, including TV, radio, print media, social media, events, face-to-face, websites, acos, orient mailmos or email.

A campaign can involve sharing a single image in an intentional way, or an integrated plan that includes every posstrial campaign element, and all the combinators in between. Campaigns may be created and run by:

- Government agencies, policymakers or intergovernmental organizations (IGOs) as part of efforts to align behaviour with new regulations or simply to promote sustainable behaviour as part of their mission.
- Companies as advertisements to promote the sustainability of their products and packaging.

Foundations or non-profits that are working to influence individuals to adopt sustainable behaviour, aggregating and elevating individual voices demanding changes from government or companies, or railying support for new policies.



3.3 Something to think about

How can we make campaigns more effective in getting people to adopt more sustainable consumer behaviors? How can we measure whether a public awareness campaign has been successful in getting consumers to fight plastic packaging pollution?

3.3.1 Using proven effective strategies

The literature review provided examples of strategies that have worked, is least in the correct of the research conducted. Campaigns that targeted specific demographic or pro/ptographic groups were typically more effective than those that did not. Positive social norms were among the most effective strategies for shaping balaviour, when used property, including the use of calabrity endorsers or role models. Being endorse that character and the shape of the strategies of that their character strategies due to a shape of the that their character strategies due as shown to positively influence behavior.

Campaigns addressing plastic pollution should use the following strategies that have been shown to be effective:

- Customize based on psychographic as well as demographic characteristics and consider life-stage specific messaging as well.
- Use positive social norms to establish or reinforce sustainable use of plastic as a social norm.

 Be specific about what people can do so that they know what positive choices they can make, not just what not to do. Challenge people to make a commitment to a new behaviour, especially publicly, as this increases the likelihood that they will stick with it.

An analysis of campaign objectives showed that the most common "ack" from campaigns, at 72% of those reviewed, was simply to relises single-use plastic products and packaging. However, only just over half of campaigns emphasized choosing reusable solutions specifically - illustraing that many campaigns are telling people what not to do, but not always silling them what a batter choice would be.

The strategy of using good norms, one of the most promising strategies, was used in just over half the campaigns, albeit with different approaches or levels of emphasis. Campaigns designed to establish or reinforce positive social norms related to sustainable use of plastic – when done well – have been shown to be way effective.

Just under half the campaigns tapped into positive emotions, which has been shown to be more effective at influencing behaviour than evolving negative emotions. Similarly, just under half the campaigns illustrated the importance of individual actions in the context of an "overwhelming" systemic challenge, which can also help movies individual action.

Icon	Strategy	Description
. . .	#1 Customizing	Recognize that different approaches will work for different people (such as introverts versus extroverts), and that major life transitions (like moving home or becoming a parent) are opportunities to change habits.
2	#2 Using good norms	Use social norms to shape behaviour. People imitate others, especially those with recognized status such as celebrities, and they respond to norm-based cues about what is acceptable and expected.
1	#3 Specifying action	Be specific about what to do. Especially when it comes to plastic, where people can feel disempowered, provide clear direction on what meaningful actions people can take.
ĕ	#4 Catalyzing commitments	Challenge people to make a public or private commitment to do something specific. Once people make that commitment, they are more likely to follow through and even shift habits over time.
	#5 Tapping into positive emotions	Tap into pride, hope and optimism. People who experience pride, hope and optimism as part of their pro-environmental behaviours tend to stick with them.
Ť	#6 Showing it matters	Show that the results – even of just one person's actions – matter. In the face of a global crisis, it is easy to believe that a bottle here or a sweet wrapper there do not matter. Show people that they do.

Figure 3.7: Summary of six effective strategies

3.3 Something to think about

What are some examples of campaigns that address plastic pollution by using psychographic as well as demographic characteristics?



Some a mapping strategies must be adoptived with care. Use of postion increases, which is fancial or "points", are difficult at duping baharaba bat on undermise whole. Use of postion increases where the massage lass is the strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest of an also care individuals to take the message lass are analyzed to strategiest middle and the strategiest and strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest of strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest of strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest of strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest and strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest and non-portices, rely on "for the greater good" as a rational late the greateriest absorbing for them careadoruling the strategiest of the strategiest of the previous a barrelist for them careadoruling the strategiest of strat

Campaigns addressing plastic pollution should be careful when following these strategies:

Figure 3.8: Summary of the four watch-outs

lcon	Watch-out	Description
۲	#1 Fear	Fear is most productive when there is something effective that a person can do to alleviate the threat. When the threat is existential or there is no immediate remedy, i just leads to anxiety and passivity.
Ŵ	#2 Incentives	Incentives work – but the behaviour goes away when the incentive goes away. Worse, intrinsic motivation can be eroded through incentives.
÷	#3 Humour	People enjoy furny or clever campaigns and they can be more memorable. However, they do not necessarily translate into the desired behaviour change, and they sometimes do the opposite.
Ś	#4 Altruism	While altruistic claims resonate with some, people tend to make behavioural choices that prioritize their present needs and desires over the good of the group and even over meeting their own future needs.

- Tread carefully when using an approach that may evoke fear. Fear, without offering any meaningful action that can be taken to reduce the threat, creates anxiety rather than action.
- Use humour when in line with the campaign objectives, in particular with younger audiences. Humour can provide a social critique in a way that does not make people defensive, and humorous campaigns tend to be more memorable.
- Use incentives to build new habits but avoid undermining intrinsic motivation.
- Combine appeals to the greater good or the future with messages about benefits to individuals and communities in the present to ensure resonance with the broadest ossible audience.

4.3.3 Avoiding common mistakes

While awareness-raising may be an important step on the way to action, it is ineffective by itself, and when focused on eliciting fear, guilt or other negative emotions, there is a in customizing strategies by audience, personality type

that call attention to bad behaviour can inadvertently normalize that bad behaviour, achieving the opposite of their intended result. Campaigns addressing plastic pollution should avoid these common mistakes:

- Assuming that awareness of the problem will lead to behaviour change, as this has been shown not to be the case. Campaigns that do not provide a specific rationale for behaviour change are unlikely to influence behaviour.

- Using guilt to try to change behaviour: while it works for some, those people are already struggling with an excess of environmental guilt and for everyone else it triggers resistance.

- When tapping into social norms, be careful not to inadvertently emphasize the regrettable frequency of undesirable behaviour, as this effectively tells neonle that the "wrong" behaviour is actually the norm.

- Failing to frame the problem and solutions as "close" - in terms of time, space, personal impacts and geography.

Campaign designers can only expect people to take actions that they are in a position to take. Individuals seeking to change their consumption patterns for plastic have more options than in recent years, but sustainable plastic packaging risk that it will backfire. Appeals that reduce the is still the exception rather than the rule. Sustainable geographic, temporal or psychological distance of a consumption is not possible without sustainable options or problem, making it relevant to individuals here and now. credible sustainability information to compare available can be effective. There appears to be untapped potential options. Campaigns can elevate individuals' voices to demand that companies change, and can call companies out for their poor sustainability performance. However, until sustainable values profile or life stage, as targeting was only apparent alternatives are prevalent, it is very difficult for individuals to in about a quarter of campaigns analysed. Campaigns live their values through their purchasing decisions.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES BOX of plastic pollution campaions



- Identifies which strategies can be effective and which might be counterproductive - when it comes to shifting people's actions around plastic.
- Six effective strategies (positive techniques that should be included in a campaign); four "watch-outs" (techniques that can be productive if used thoughtfully but can backfire are ineffective or counterproductive) are evoluted

Provides recommendations that can be used by anyone creating a campaign concerned with plastic use.

Reducing Plastic Pollution: Campaigns that Work

Figure 3.9: Summary of the four common mistakes

Icon	Common mistakes	Description
2	21 Stopping at awareness	Assuming that making people aware of the problem will lead to behaviour charge. Awareness can be a first step on the path to action, but the journey is not inevitable.
'n	#2 Using guilt	Using guilt to try to change behaviour. Appeals to guilt will create resistance in many people. For the rest, their guilt cup is already overflowing, reducing potential effectiveness.
۳ İ v	#3 Reinforcing bad norms	Showing the regrettable frequency of undesirable behaviours. Social norms are effectiv at shaping behaviour – so showing the prevalence of bad behaviour backfires.
¢Š	24 Allowing distance	Allowing the problem to feel distant or intangible, and relying more on statistics tha images and stories. People are more moved to action by problems that are local, urgen and tangible. Physical, temporal or psychological distance all undermine our motivatio to act.





NUDGING: EXPLORING THE USE OF GREEN NUDGES TO REDUCE CONSUMPTION OF DISPOSABLE COFFEE CUP

A sudy on the use of nudging as a complement to studional policies to reduce the use of plastics was developed as part of the ongoing cooperation on bibliokal implements on Susalinable. Likewise and plastics and plastics of the subscription and international cooperation for the circular and sustainable use of plastics.

The report Next stage in sacking particle likes – a multiple stage for inducing construction of injust-on adsposale captor dataset on existing introducing and supportances to provide a multiple stage and implementation guidantees that can be adapted and used by real-oil and local provides a multiple stage and implementation guidantees that can be adapted and used by real-oil and local communities in discussion. The secondaria is and local communities of the secondaria of the secondaria of the secondaria stage of the secondaria of the secondaria calculate in polymentary more thanking and the second calculate in polymentary more thanking and the second regions of secondaria const.

What is nudging?

Consumes tend to be aware of plastic polition as an environmental problem. but they donn hal to grasp the scatter of the problem and its acute nature, and to transitie the awareness into more sustainable behaviours. In order to bridge the gap between awareness and sustainable copters one policital strategies to excluse glastic polition. Nadjergi is one tool that is increasingly applied to address challenges enlawed to sustainability and the environment.

Nudges are non-restrictive inserventions that also the environment to make it easies for citizens to maker bester decisions (Thate's & Sunsain', 2008). Changes to the "choice architectum",400 ethe "decision consust", aim to upde citizens towards a particular behaviour change without prohibiting other possible choices or implinging on fee with.

Nudging goes beyond the traditional communicative approach, usually influencing behaviour in the memore when docisions are made. They are easy and nelabely cheaps to implement for organizations that are not involved in policymaking. Casen mudges are a positive and gentle persusation scheduling to encourage pro-servicemental more anivershibe to future of banges fue are not necessarily policy instruments in themselves.

When to nudge?

Nadging can be considered as a first step towards change in emerging policy aneae, or as a way to enable other policy instruments to work more efficiently. Nadging is appropriate when individuali: attitudes and intentions are aligned with the portomrance of a given desired behaviour, but they fail to act in accordance with these due to situational or psychological constantiants.

38 A choice architecture is the structure in which choices are made, such as how and is what order and with what attending information different options are introduced.

Defining a modging strategy to reduce user-level consumption of singleuse disposable collee caps

There are two important stages that must be undertaken before

any mudging strategy is put into practice. First, there needs to be a process for determining when mudging is feasible; and second, a systematic examination of the relevant behaviours. With those stages addressed, the report proposes three mudging interventions to reduce user-level consumption of single-use disposable conference cups:

 Nudge 1: A soft new default for coffee ordered over the counter implies that single-use disposable cups will no longer be the default option.

— Nudge 2: Bring your own cup for convenient self-service facilitates the replacement of single-use cups by making personal reusable cups the quicker and more convenient way of getting coffee in self service locations.

— Nudge 2: Refiliable cups increase reasability with the psychologically, environmentally and economically more impactual and attractive property of refiliability. It elevanose reasable cups to markers of identify and status and provides a way for coffee chains to huid long-term customer relations by frying coffee subscription plants to branded cups. At the same time, it ensures that reasable cups get resued enough simes to compensate for the environmental impacts of their production.

These three nudges can be used individually but are expected to

produce the generated benefits if used in correlation. The scale of implementation must be larily user in order for the rundping strategy to produce desirable effects, in terms of the geographical area and the number of business clusters where the rundping are implemented. As a rule, a major cby and its surrounding commuter bett would be the minimum scale for implementation, implementation is a collaborative effort between policymakers, market stabeholders and exposts in behavioural science.

Participating individuals and organizations from each of these

groups will need to be open-minished and fassible throughout the implementation need wouldating process. An ongoing parties of workshops involving patkymääser, maatet sääkehdens aud instaad sa än site sage partiest implementation. These workshops should become the central amount for calaboration throughout the workshop and advector polisionalistic alliances with market form, market and develop polisionalistic alliances with market are the foundations of a successful market.



Next steps: Tackling Plastic Litter - A Nudging Strategy for Reducing Consumption of Single Disposable Cups



Additional resource on nudging: WRAP, Exploring the Use of Green Nudges to reduce Consumption of Disposable Coffee Consumption Swerken



Examples of good practices

	Box 3.3: Good practice +#ISupportBanPlasticsKE
Organization: Organization type: Elements: Channel(s): Year: Languages: Geography: Description:	Notivibual free applicates Social mode points Social mode, anal Na 2015 English Nerya James Walkes, a phratogranular, cruater the campaign calify on the Kanya Common to ban placet. Sogn expension of the social mode of the social social mode of the social mode. The protection of the social social mode in the social mode of the social mode. The social of handware and social phonois of people hotting. A unich is here inseled on total mode. The placet bag bane was passed in 2012?
Objective(s): Results:	

Assessment

Overall: This grass-roots campaign is simple and uses several effective strategies while avoiding pitfulls. The campaign is positive and action-oriented, and likely built support for its own success by shifting the social norm around effectic beau states.

James Valka, a prohiportutti, consetto H Harribuccici Caragona, in 2012 Congre da Na Javago Conservanto I da Ingala Listo en coscia India, Jihova da Carago da Na Javago Conservanto I da Ingala Listo en coscia India, Jihova en conservanto I da Ingala Carago Del Conservanto I da Ingala Conservanto and Inacian Roscinca, Jad Walahangu, expressing her inagoot I har da Ingala en conservanto I har Indiango Seguestica I da Ingala Conservanto and Javaso I da Ingala Listo da Javaso de Conservanto I na Ingala Angel (Listo I da Ingala Listo da Ingala Conservanto I da Ingala Conservanto Ingala Conservanto I da Ingala Conservanto I da Ingala Conservanto Ingala Conservanto I da Ingala Conservanto I da Ingala Conservanto I da Ingala Conservanto



Links: https://www.sbs.com.au/topics/ voices/culture/article/2017/05/12/ how-man-helping-solve-kenyas wasteproblem

Observations

- The campaion is crounded in a positive social norm and includes a statement of commitment, tapping into positive emotions (1 support)
- The significance of each individual in taking this action is clear for participants, but there is an extra layer of relevance here as well, as this campaion was initiated and executed by one person.

Outlo mi attion	Goodnorris	Specificity	Correitment	Positive errotors	Significance	For	incentive s	Human	Atuism	Automotos	Guik	Bad norms	Distrance
	x		х	x	X					2	'nj	1 v	¢Ś



Box 3.4: Good practice -Plastic free july

Organization:	Plastic Free Foundation Non-profit Social media posts, pledge, videos, posters, website, shopping resources, email									
Organization type: Elements:	newalatier and other assets (badges and so fasth) Website, social media and email									
Channel(s): Year: Languages: Geography: Description:	2011 Englah Enhar									
Objective(s):	Refuse single use plastic products and packaging; choose reusable packaging and foodware; choose - and demand - sustainable packaging & products									
Results:	In July 2019, an estimated 250 million people in 177 countries took part in the challenge. 29% of people were aware of the campaign; almost half of those took part in 2018. 50% of participants made changes that have become habits or a way of life.									

Assessment

Overal: This campaign integrates all six effective strategies and works all the common instakes, providing an escelar is example of an effective campaign, and the masking common . There hash remaind the program 100 and an and instative wheth handhold participants is Weisem Asahtalis, but has grown to million of people across 170 counties. The challenge is, as the mere implies, not to use any data: In . All, should be campaign rescurs are any enable to access any fem.



The commitment is very specific – a discrete set of actions, time-bound and placed in the context of daily decisions. "My Challenge Choices" show the relative impact of different commitments by connecting the action to an outcome in the world such as climate charase or environmental collidor.

Far from being associated with negativity, the campaign logs into positive errotions: the language is action-oriented and positive, and focused entitiely on equipping paropile to be part of the solution. The website and social media posite avoid the adoptose of politice on territry statistice, emphasizing material the positive context impact of many individual's actions. Impostratly, the terreties to the actions are framed as primerly personal and local (chers shreets, beautiful communities) subter them 'to the positive coord' or 'to the human."

Like most effective campaigns, it also uses social norms both through reporting participation and with the 'What Others' Do' page on their website, which reinforces new social norms while also providing practical advice.

Observations:

- Effective use of social norms both through reporting participation in pledge and with the "What Others Do" page on their website, which reinforces new social norms while also providing practical advice. Commitment is very specific – specific actions, time-bound and placed in the context of day decision: "No Challenge Choice" show the whilekent commitment by connecting
- the action to a real outcome in the world. Taps into positive emotions language and focus is all very action-oriented and positive.
- The campaign identifies plastic pollution as the problem to solve but spends almost no time or space on the problem itself, rather it
- focused entirely on equipping people to be part of the solution, and it emphasizes the collective impact of many individuals' actions. Eventits for the actions are primarily personal and local (clean streets, beautiful communities).

Outorri zallo n	Goodname	Specificity	Correlation	Positive errotions	Significance	Four	Incentives	Hurrour	Atruism	Automotos	đuệ.	Bad norms	Distrance
X	X	X	X	X	X					2	ŋ	1 .	¢Ś



3.4. engaging key sectors and industries against plastic pollution: tourism

3.4.1 Tourism: a priority sector in addressing plastic pollution

pollution from tourism can easily end up in oceans and waterways. In coastal areas, a significant proportion of marine plastic litter comes from tourism and other tourism related value chains. Much of the plactic used in the sector is made to be thrown away and often cannot be recycled. Single-use plastic products, including plastic packaging, are indeed widely used in the sector for a number of reasons, including compliance with health, safety and hygiene expectations, standards and regulations. Operationally speaking, it is lightweight, cheap, readily available and convenient for both employees and customers in the

The tourism sector is among the hardest hit by the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic. The need to prevent the spread of infection has made plastic pollution management even more complex in the sector, resulting in applications (small format packaging, water bottles and plastic bags), but also the introduction of new single-use items such as disposable face masks and gloves 42

3.4.2 A multi-dimensional challenge: plastic pollution across the tourism value chain, in the tourism sector and its

The tourism value chain is the entire sequence of activities or parties that provide or receive value in the form of tourism products or services and their relationships and dynamics. In relation to plastic pollution, this means that it is not only products that are used by tourism businesses in their own operations, but products used throughout the value chain by all stakeholders, including products not solely composed of plastics. For example, to grow fruits and vegetables served by tourism businesses, horticulture growers use plastic materials for crop covering, soil mulching, packaging, containers, pots, irrigation and drainage pipe mulching, some of which may leak into the environment.43

The tourism sector itself consists of several industries including accommodation, meetings or events, aviation and

ruises. Each industry has its own characteristics when it comes to the use of plastic products and their disposal.

The five most common single-use plastic products from hotels and arrommodation onwiders are water bottles, disposable toiletries, plastic bags and bin liners, food packaging and cups. For cruises, the types of plastic products used are likely to be similar. The items of most concern in meetings and events are food packaging and service ware (plates, cutlery, cups, coffee cups and lids), water bottles, vinvl banners and polystyrenecore boards, vinyl tabletops, cling film, plastic sheeting to protect carpets pre-event, giveaways and name badges. For airlines, bottles are probably the main single-use plastic product, followed by cutlery, cups, plastic bags and cleaning

Regarding plastic packaging specifically, its use in the sector is often linked to and considered necessary for preventing food waste, which highlights the need to implement approach to tackle food loss and waste within the food system.

Accommodation, events and aviation seem to generate similar volumes of plastic waste, and while cruises generate much lower volumes (as they have fewer quests), they could still be a significant source of pollution due to proximity to the marine environment and risks of littering. Aviation is likely to be the least significant source of the four industries. Despite large volumes of waste generated. the risk of leakage is relatively low, due to tight regulations around the disposal of cabin waste. For the accommodation and events sectors, the availability of waste services will largely influence leakage and impacts.44

3.4 Something to think about

In coastal areas, a significant proportion of marine plastic litter comes from tourism and other tourism-related value chains. How can we reduce the use of single-use plastic in coastal areas?

Did you know that ...? Most of the chemicals leaching from food packaging come from plastics? A new study has discovered that roughly 25% of the chemicals known to be in food packaging have been found in the human body. How many chemicals in food packaging enter through the foods we eat depends on the type of packaging and type of food. For example, high temperatures can cause chemicals to leach more quickly into food. That microwaving food that is in plastic take out containers

3.4 Something to think about

Given that major tourism industries (hotels, these industries do to reduce the quantity of plastic products that are used?

43 UNEP, 2020. Rethinking Single Use Plastic Products in Tourism: Impacts, 44 UNEP, 2020. Rethinking Single Use Plastic Products in Tourism: Impacts,

⁴¹ UNEP, 2020. Rethinking Single Use Plastic Products in Tourism: Impacts

⁴² UNEP, 2020. Rethinking Single Use Plastic Products in Tourism: Impacts

wfuna 🥢

Figure 3.10: Tourism value chain with key plastic products and uses (Adapted from United Nations Environment Programme and World Travel & Tourism Council (2021) Rethinking Single-Use Plastic Products in Travel & Tourism - Impacts, Management Practices and Renormendations.



padage

3.4.3 The need for a concerted approach

Tourism companies and destinations have been making great strides lowands reducing their environmental impact and operating in harmony with nature. However, the problem of plastic pallution in tourism is too complex for any single organization to fix on its own. To match the scale of the problem, changes need to take place across the whole tourism value chain.

Taking action on plastic pollution and transitioning to circularity in the use of plastics is critical to increase sustainability in the sector and can significantly help prevent plastic ending up as pollution while also reducing the amount of new plastic that needs to be produced.

Considering the interaction between inductrises with different characteristics, the interactionships between the tourism value chain and many other sectoral value chains (such as food, building, construction, furniture and so ent, and the complexity of plastic pollution management within operations, a systemic approach and global coordination efforts are required to tackle the olastics collution chalferes in the sector.

3.4.4 The Global Tourism Plastics Initiative

To mobilie all actors across the tourism value chain towards in joint actions against plastic pollution, the Sustainable Tourism programme launched the Global Tourism Riestics Initiative (GTR) lead by the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) and the World Tourism Organization (UNITO) in collaboration with the Ellen MacArthur Foundation (BMF). The initiative is being implemented within the framework of

the One Planet Sustainable Tourism Programme and with support of the Government of France. The GTPI acts as the tourism sector interface of the New Plastics Economy Global Commitment.

The GTPI requires tourism organizations to make a set of concrete and actionable commitments by 2025:

- Eliminate problematic or unnecessary plastic packaging and items by 2025;
- Take action to move from single-use to reuse models or reusable alternatives by 2025;
- Engage the value chain to move towards 100% of plastic packaging to be reusable, recyclable or compostable by 2025;
- Take action to increase the amount of recycled contentacross all plastic packaging and items used;
- Collaborate and invest to increase the recycling and composting rates for plastics; and
- Report publicly and annually on progress made towards these targets.

To support the tourism scatce in the implementation of these ambittous depictives, while exampling tachnical right and the transparency of the actions implemented by relevant capatulations, the objectives are being broken down into actionable elements within a number of tablend signatory pack-site to address the needs of said tragen tableholder group. The minimum antibiton level of the commitment will be nerviewed every if to 24 monthebial appropriate, to ensure it continues to represent true leadership.

One year and a half since the launch of the Initiative (in early 2020), GTP in significant over 100 agrounds departed to ongoing global pandemic that has considerably affected the tourism sector's operation. Signatories include a variety of stakeholders across the tourism value chain such as uppliers, accommodation grounders flage multinational companies and SMEst tour operators, booking platforms, water management service providers and a range of supporting organizations (business associations, consultances and non-governmental organizations (MCOs).

Type of Global Tourism Plastics Initiative Signatories



Regions of Global Tourism Plastics Initiative



5 As of June 2020, signatory packs are available for accommodation usinesses, suppliers of plastic packaging or packaged goods, escinations and supporting organizations to become signatories. ddisional signatory packs for other stakeholder groups were at the evolopment stage in 2020.

Mi For the Global Tourism Plastics Initiative, the 18 to 24 months term to review its ambition level began at the industry launch event at the international Tourism Rait (FTUR) on 22 January 2020.



The Global Tourism Plastics Initiative (GTPI) listed actions to be taken by 2025 by the tourism industry. Which regions have higher levels of tourism? Are these regions committed to the GTPI initiatives? Signatories include renowned companies such as Accor Tackling plastic pollution in the context of COVID-19 Group, Iberostar Group, Club Med and TUI Group, Other companies that could potentially have a strong impact on As a first step, and in light of the urgency driven by the COVIDalso joined as signatories.

- Accor Group: hospitality group with more than 5.000 hotels and residences across 110 destinations:
- TUI Group: with over 350 hotels and 17 cruises:
- ClubMed with over 68 resorts worldwide:

- deSter (a Gate Group member), a leading provider of innovative and sustainable food packaging and service ware concepts to the aviation, hospitality and

- Booking.com: world's leading online travel platform, with more than 29 million reported listings across more than 141.000 global destinations

So far, an overview of the commitments by signatories has experience: rooms, bathrooms, food/beverages and service areas. While some of these areas will be addressed in the short term, in most cases the elimination of plastic recommendations are: a mid-term goal, owing to the dependence on suppliers 1. from the food sector. Commitments related to recyclability and recycled content require an active engagement of suppliers and procurement teams. the 2 targets to drive the engagement of suppliers and the need to engage regulators and supporting organizations in such efforts.

The GTPI is supporting its signatories in implementing their commitments by providing information on tools, methodologies and recommendations through:

- Curated resources and tools related to a circular economy of plastics in the tourism sector. Database Consumer Information and Sustainable Lifestyles and Education on labels, certifications and communication campaigns; and

- Consultative development of recommendations and guidance on key topics identified by signatories such and sustainable procurement.

the circular economy of plastics in the tourism sector (such 19 pandemic in the sector, the One Planet Sustainable Tourism as Booking.com and deSter (a Gate Group member)) have Programme and its GTPI released the "Recommendations for during COVID-19" to support the onzoing debate on hygiene and sustainability. Tourism husinesses and organizations have applied the recommendations to develop COVID-19 recovery management strategies.

> The Recommendations build on the key concepts underlying a common vision for a circular economy for plastic, the common definitions of the Global Tourism Plastics Initiative 47 the One Planet Vision for a Responsible Recovery of the Tourism Sector 48 and the latest guidance from the World Health Organization (WHO). World Tourism Organization (UNWTO). UN Environment Programme (UNEP), Ellen MacArthur Foundation and leading business associations.

More specifically, the document illustrates how reducing the plastic footprint, increasing the engagement of suppliers, working more closely with waste service providers and ensuring transparency can significantly contribute to a responsible recovery of the tourism sector. The five main

- Removing unneressary plastic parkaging and items to reduce cross-contamination touch points:
- that encourage the adoption of reuse models:
- items, enquiring about their recyclability and reassessing needs on a regular basis:
- Engaging suppliers, waste management providers and local governments to improve the effectiveness of actions, coordination and resilience

Ensuring open and transparent communication with staff and clients.

The document also provides examples of situations and questions faced by tourism businesses in the context of the can be effectively applied.

48 One Planet Sustainable Tourism Programme (2020) - One Planet



Key messages on a life-cycle approach for tourism stakeholders

In 2021 the GTPI team issued additional recommendations to help signatories navigate the multiple information "Addressing nollution from singleurse plastic products: A Life Cycle Approach - Key messages for tourism businesses" summarizes the key findings of the Life Cycle Initiative's report series and summary report from the tourism sector's perspective.49 It aims to educate tourism stakeholders and provide evidence-based guidance for decision-making to address pollution from single-use plastics. Key messages and recommendations are presented for the following single-use plastic products: bottles, cups, bags, take-away food packaging and tableware. These key messages and recommendations are also relevant for other single-use plastic products commonly used in the tourism sector such as singleuse toiletries and straws - the main problem is their single-use nature and the resulting impacts (rather than the material of which they are made).

The Recommendations outline the crucial role of reuse models (2) in reducing environmental impacts (as opposed to single-use plastic or other materials), while also emphasizing the idea that a reusable alternative should be used a certain number of times (dispanding on the product) to affictively reduce environmental impacts in comparison to a single-use product.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES BOX Resources made available as part of the GTP

Recommendations for the tourism sector to continue taking action on plastic pollution during COVID-19 recovery - Global Tourism Plastics Initiative, 2020

- Helps hotels to have a quick and informed response in the context of the lack of resources and time:
- Supports and reinforces companies' internal CSR positions in favor of reuse models;
- (3) Reassures hotels on the fact that cleaning procedures and staff training are the most effective measures in terms on hygiene.

Addressing pollution from single-use plastic products: A Life Cycle Approach – Key messages for tourism businesses - Global Tourism Plastics Initiative, 2021

- Summarizes, from the tourism sector's perspective the key findings of a series of meta-analyses of LCA studies on single-use plastic products and their alternatives.
- Educates tourism stakeholders and provides evidencebased guidance for decision-making to address pollution from single-use plastic products.

Rethinking Single Use Plastic Products in Tourism: Impacts, Management Practices and Recommendations - UNEP and WTTC, 2021

- (1) Maps single-use plastic products across the travel and tourism value chain, identifying hotspots for environmental leakages and providing practical and strategic recommendations for businesses, politymakers and other value chain actors.
- (2) Helps actors take collective steps towards coordinated actions and policies that drive a shift towards reduce and reuse models, in line with circularity principles as well as current and future waste infrastructure.

GTPI plastic measurement methodology tools for Accommodation Providers

- supports accommodation providers with measurement of weight of plastics in operations.
- accompanied by two calculation tools to gather data on property and company levels

Addressing plastic pollution in tourism through sustainable procurement

The guidance is providing practical tools for procurers in tourism businesses; these include model wording for tender criteria; a hierarchical decision tree for informing actions to eliminate and reduce the dependency on plastics within tenders; and a summary of procurement tools.

⁴⁹ Life Cycle Initiative (2021). Single-Lise Plastic Products (SLIPP) and their alternatives: Recommendations from Life Cycle Assessments, and United Nations Environment Programme (2021), Addressing Single-use Plastic Products Pollution Using a Life Cycle Approach. National.

Box 3.5: LCA-Based recommendations for tourism businesses to address plastic pollution from single-use plastic take-away food packaging

Avoid switching from plastic packaging to another single- use alternative

· When evaluating alternatives, be aware of trade-offs

 A single-use polypropylene (PP) container has the most severe impacts on climate change, acidification and other environmental categories;

 An aluminium container scores worst in terms of ozone layer depletion, human toxicity, marine and terrestrial ecotoxicity.

 Before switching to another single-use options, carefully learn about and evaluate the alternatives based on the given control

Introduce reusable take-away food packaging systems

 Reusable packaging, if reused enough times, has better overall environmental performance than single-use packaging.

 Consider introducing incentives, such as discounts for customers who bring their own food containers from home.

 Select the reuse model (in-house, third-party or mixed) that fits the business and keeps track of the containers in business operations.

Use communications to create guest and staff awareness around reuse practices

· Consumer behaviour directly influences the

environmental performance of food packaging

 A Commit to reuse practices as part of the business strategy and communicate this to customers in encouraging and innovative ways

 Use targeted campaigns to encourage customers to consistently reuse their reusable food containers brought from home and/or provided by the tourism business

Engage suppliers to understand their material sourcing and production processes

 The environmental impact of a type of packing is influenced by whether it is made from fossil or biobased resources, and from primary or secondary (Recycled) resource

 Partner with suppliers committed to sustainable production methods (such as renewable energy, resource-saying appliances, low emissions, waste generation and so on).

The food contained often has a higher environmental impact than the packaging itself.

 Evaluate how well the packaging used prevents food waste and spolage.

Understand how product design can help reduce environmental impact

. The design and technical performance of a food

container can directly influence its environmental impact the workert tile context.

 Designs with straighter lines and that avoid corners and narrow openings are easier to wash, and therefore more resource efficient.

 Consider using technologies that allow careful tracking of how the product is used, whether it has a problem that makes it usade and so forth (such as radio-frequency identification).

 Purchase containers that are easy to handle and encourage future uses in internal operations (cleaning and cooking) and by guests.

- Choose packaging that is as lightweight and durable as possible while achieving required functionality.
 Consider options for end-of-life treatment when
- making a product choice (Including littering rates at destination and recyclability of the material.)

Re-evaluate the transport and delivery schemes behind take-away or room services

 A well-established delivery system and efficient ways of transportation can significantly improve environmental performance.

 Develop sustainable transport options, such as delivery by e-trucks and bikes, energy-efficient elevators in-house and so one.

Implement resource-efficient washing solutions for reusable food containers

 The biggest share of the environmental footprint of reusable containers is created during the washing stage (>40%)

 Take advantage of technological innovations to reduce the use of water, energy, and detergent.

During the transition to reusable food packaging, ensure

good waste separation systems in any tourism business.

- The way products are managed in their final life stage has a substantial influence on their environmental impact.
 Packaging that is effectively recycled can significantly
- reduce the use of raw materials for producing new ones. • Make sure waste separation is easy to understand and well signposted

 Establish disposal systems are designed to segregate different types of materials (recyclable versus nonrecyclable) and are free of food leftovers.

 Ask waste service providers about their current and projected capacity to recycle bags of different materials.



Summary: Chapter 4

This chapter provides key messages and recommendations for governments and businesses to address plastic pollution.

CHAPTER FOUR

RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONCLUSIONS

4.1 key messages to governments

Governments have a critical role to play in increasing in improving and promoting consumer information on plastic packaging to move towards a more circular economy for plastic. It is recommended that governments:

(1) Art to make on-nack labels actionable and relevant: regulate to ensure that consumer information available on the market is aligned with the principles (6) of the Guidelines for Providing Product Sustainability Information; update the use of the pre-2013 Resin identification Codes by implementing legislation to enforce the use of the new enclosed triangular design: Sustainable Public Procurement can create markets for change the design of the Green Dot** logo and restrict sustainable solutions and offer a concrete pathway for the use of the label where it is not relevant.



- (2) Act against greenwashing: regulate or at least set (1) Follow the recommendations to improve labelling out strategies to tackle greenwashing effectively. Regulations that define common on-narkage sustainability claims would reduce greenwashing and the use of terms that consumers find confusing and difficult to compare.
- (3) Promote campaigns that inform consumers about the content of labels and claims, and the actions they should take: organize education campaiens to inform (2) consumers about commonly used terms, claims, labels and symbols on plastic packaging and how to identify credible sustainability information. Highlight what a misleading claim is and how consumers can report these to relevant horfles in their area
- (4) Promote campaigns as part of efforts to align behaviour with new regulations.
- (5) Implement effective campaigns by using specific strategies that have shown to be effective; customize on campaigns based on psychographic as well as demographic characteristics, and consider life-stageto establish or reinforce sustainable use of plastic as know what positive choices they can make, not just what not to do; challenge people to make a commitment to a new behaviour, especially publicly, as this increases

the likelihood that they will stick with it: tao into nositive emotions such as hone instimism inside and love as these emotions are associated with enduring hehaviour change show that the results - even of individual actions - matter, to counteract the sense that people may have of feeling insignificant or overwhelmed by the scope of the problem.

Evaluate the outcomes of campaiens: measure and share the results of the implemented strategies to enable further research and learning.

governments to lead by example, for example by introducing plastic packaging in purchasing, and by encouraging demand for secondary reprocessed plastics through the procurement of recycled content in packaging. It is recommended that governments:

standards, mitigate confusing claims and raise awareness (as described abrue)/ hetter and more accessible information around packaging materials is key to informing purchasing decisions. Standards, certifications and labels help procurers in verification and evaluation processes.

Challenge the need to use and consume plastic packaging as the first step in every procurement exercise: governments should adopt a waste hierarchy for plastic packaging, prioritizing action according to the principles of reduce, reuse, recycle, recover or landfill.

(3) Embed requirements on the procurement of plastic packaging in sustainable procurement policies; set out green public procurement criteria in tenders that relate directly or indirectly to plastic packaging.

Collaborate with suppliers to foster innovation: through market engagement, work with suppliers to understand not just where the plastic packaging hotspots are, but new design solutions to eliminate non-recyclable plastics or ensure more effective recycling.



4.2 key messages to businesses

Business action and collaboration are required to increase consumer awareness, promote behavioural change, improve consumer information and encourage a more circular economy for plastic packaging. It is recommended that businesses:

(1) Art to ensure sustainability information and imagery are clear and relevance adopt consumer information tools that are fully aligned with the principles of the Guidelines for Providing Product Sustainability information; develop localized communications on placing predicing to ensure ther relevant tools used are actionabile for consumers (for instance, materials used in packaging can be paired).

with local disposal information to prevent consumer confusion); liaise with managers of waste infrastructure and government to help improve standardized labelling with simple and consistent language that aligns with local recycling capabilities.

- (2) Strengthen sustainability information on e-commerce platforms: Ensure that e-commerce platforms are transparent, provide comprehensive information about packaging and highlight the potential for reuse schemes and reverse logistics given the high volume and frequency of deliversies.
- (3) Increase circular literacy amongst consumers: redesign packaging to facilitate reuse and recycling, and ensure that this is dearly communicated to the consumer through labeling and further online information.
- (4) Collaborate with governments to increase awareness around what certain labels/claims stand for or do this



as part of their marketing efforts: running campaigns to better educate and inform consumers, alongside labelling and other communication efforts to help guide consumers in the marketplace.

Implement effective campaigns by using strategies that have shown to be effective: customize campaigns based on psychographic as well as demographic characteristics, and consider life-stage-specific messaging as well; use positive social norms to establish or reinforce sustainable use of plastic as a social norm; specify what people can do so that they know what positive choices they can make, not just what not to do; challenge people to make a commitment to a new behaviour, especially publicly, as this increases the likelihood that they will stick with it: tap into positive emotions such as hope, optimism. pride and love as these emotions are associated with enduring behaviour change: and show that the results - even of individual actions - matter, to counteract the sense that people may have of feeling insignificant or overwhelmed by the scope of the problem.

Procurement practices also play a significant role in changing purchasing behaviour and encouraging market shifts. Adopting a value-chain approach to procurement is a major stap in changing procurement practice. This implies not just thinking about who made is but also, how will be used, and finally what will happen to the product or material at end of use. It is recommended that businesses:

- (1) Explicitly make sustainable procurement a delivery mechanism of organizational sustainability policies create transparency and provide a clear mandate for embedding sustainable procurement practices within the procurement process; implement sustainable procurement; includants to analysis the bisedified of sustainable procurements to be captured and reported sustainable procurements; bits captured and reported summitments.
- Build procurement capacity and knowledge: work to understand the impacts of procurement at the organizational scale and implement capacity-building on plastic pollution reduction strategies through sustainable procurement.
- Challenge the need to use and consume plastic packaging as the first step in every procurement exercise: organizations should adopt a waste hierarchy for plastic packaging, prioritizing actions according to the principles of reduce, reuse, recycle, recover or landfill.

It is widely acknowledged that the current linear Through the implementation of the One Planet Network-wide production, use and disposal model of the plastic industry. Plastics initiative, the network has proven its capacity to:

a need for a fundamental shift to a circular economy model where plastics are kent within the economy at their highest possible value. Such a shift requires key interventions across all stages of the plastic value chain, with upstream and downstream solutions jointly deployed. greatest opportunities for improvement. Key upstream interventions related to the use of plastic

more sustainable choices.

effective consumer campaigns to trigger behaviour change.

- Setting up sustainable public procurement policies to support reusable options and products containing recycled content.

Collaborative efforts are considered an important step in recognizing ongoing efforts and encouraging exchange of best practice and the sharing of solutions, including legislative instruments 50 Tools, expertise and solutions are available armss the One Planet network to implement these interventions. There is an opportunity to build on ongoing initiatives of its programmes, and to capitalize on its multi-stakeholder network to mobilize action, define concerted action and efficiently deliver concrete outputs to address plastic pollution. The network's programmes include expertise and knowledge resources on consumption practices and high-impact sectors, which can in turn be applied to plastic pollution.

- Enster the adoption of science-based decisions and

- Set the agenda on SDG 12, bringing stakeholders together to tackle key issues that call for collaboration

- Develop and share good practice guidance to set a clear direction across areas of expertise and sectors

The Multi-Partner Trust Fund for SDG 12 established by six - Providing clear and reliable sustainability information UN agencies51 brings together the expertise of the 10-Year based on life-cycle thinking and promoting credible Framework of Programmes on Sustainable Consumption and labelling standards so that consumers are aware of Production Patterns (10YFP) and its One Planet network and the comparative advantages of the participating UN agencies. The Fund provides a unique opportunity for a financial - Increasing consumer awareness through targeted and mechanism to support transformative actions on plastics guided by the Global Strategy on SDG 12 and sustainable consumption and production (SCP).



⁵⁰ LINEP, 2021b. From Pollution to Solution. A slobal assessment of marine



CHAPTER FIVE

KEY DEFINITIONS

wfuna 🕢

Summary: Chapter 5

This chapter provides definitions for key terms related to plastic packaging and sustainability, such as problematic plastic packaging, reusable and recyclable packaging, compostable materials, and biodegradable products.



Based on the common definitions for the New Plastics Economy Global Commitment,50 this annex lists key definitions regarding circular economy for plastics. These definitions provide a basis for the terminologies used in the plastics-related activities, tools and solutions of the One Planet network's programmes in the context of this guidance.

REUSE

Problematic or unnecessary plastic packaging or plastic packaging components



The following list of criteria is provided to help identify problematic or unnecessary plastic packaging or plastic packaging components:

- It is not reusable, recyclable or compostable (as per the definitions below).
- (2) It contains, or its manufacturing requires, hazardous chemicals52 that pose a significant risk to human health or the environment (applying the precautionary principle).
- (3) It can be avoided (or replaced by a reuse model) while maintaining utility.
- (4) It hinders or disrupts the recyclability or compostability of other items.
- (5) It has a high likelihood of being littered or ending up in the natural environment.

Definition: Reuse of packating

Operation by which packaging is refilled or used for the same purpose for which it was conceived, with or without the support of auxiliary products (1) present on the market, enabling the packaging to be refiled.

Source: 500 18603:2013, Packaging and the environment – Beaux, modified (addinication in note to blonk). Note: An auxiliary product is a product used to support the relifing/backing of reusable packaging. (–,) An sample of an auxiliary product; that are direngent pound used to relifi a reusable container at home (501 18603). As per 505 18603, auxiliary product; that are non-way products; (designed to be used once) are not considered reusable packaging.

Further explanatory notes

- (1) Attention should be paid to the intended use and function of the packaging, in order to verify whether it is being reused for the same purpose or a secondary use. In the latter case the packaging is not considered as reusable packaging (201508), "Packaging used for the same purpose", such that the use of a package as a pen-holder or as decoration cannot be qualified as reuse.
 - A package is considered reusable if the design of the packaging exambles the principal components to accomplish a number of trips or rotations in normally predicable conditions of use (IS) 186033, According to ISO 18601, a packaging component is a part of packaging that can be separated by hand or by using simple physical means (such as a cap, a lid, a (non in-mould) biel).

C3 Hazardous, chemicals are those that show intrinsically hazardous propertice groups and the second secon

S1 New Flancis Economy Global Commitment definitions are built on an enteritor environ of existing definitions, desired definitions desired of experts and a locad trakeholder network insolving over 100 organizations and experts and a locad trakeholder network insolving over 100 organizations and experts and a locad trakeholder network insolving over 100 organizations and experts and a locad trakeholder network insolving over 100 organizations (locad Committee Leferidocer http://www.respectation.commy.org) Global Committee Leferidocer http://www.respectation.commy.org)

Examples

Packaging can be reused in different ways:

 Business-to-business applications: packaging is reused through a redistribution system between one or more companies54 (such as pallets loaded with the same or different product,55 crases or pallet wraps)

— Business business and an advantage approximate applications packaging returned to the suppire to be received (relified) for the distribution and sale of an identical or similar product guide has a container that is and of a deposit return or refuelling systems for reaco, a neurnable transportation packaging term, a resumble container in the docursie industry to packaging to the user as a container or a displayment for the same product supplier, but instand reused by the user as a container or a displayment for the same product supplied by the manufacture for the same purpose (such as a refit) making in a concentrate of the fit of the same product supplier (but in a concentrate of the same purpose (such as a refit) industry in a concentrate form.



Definition: Reusable packaging

Packaging which has been designed to accomplish or proves its ability to accomplish a minimum number of trips or rotations (1,2) in a system for reuse (3,4).

Source: ISO 18603:2013 – Packaging and the environment – Reuse, modified (packaging component mentioned in notes)

Notes:

(1) A trip is defined as transfer of packaging, from

filing/

loading to emptying/unloading. A rotation is defined as a cycle undergone by reusable packaging from filine/loading to filine/loading (ISO 18603).

- The minimum number of trips or rotations refers to the fact that the "system for rease" in place should be proven to work in practice. In other words, a significant share of the package is actually roused (measured by an average rease rate or an average provide or up on other provide on the state of the package of the system of the syst
- A system for reuse is defined as established arrangements (organizational, technical or financial) that ensure the possibility of reuse, in closed-loop, open-loop or in a hybrid system (ISO 18603).
- ⁷⁰ See above for the definition of reuse, which stresses - inter ello - the need for the packaging to be refilled or used again for the same purpose for which it was conceived

Further explanatory notes

- (1) For a container to qualify as reusable, there needs to be a "system for reusar" in place that enables the usar of the package to ensure it is reused in practice where the item is placed on the market. Such a system for reuse should be able to prove a significant actual reuse rate, or average number of use-cycles of a package, in normal conditions of use.
- 2) Apackage is considered reutable if the design of the packaging anables the principal components to accomptish a number of trips or rotations in normally predictable conditions of use (SO 1860122013). According to ISO 18601, a packaging component is a part of packaging that can be separated by hand or by using simple physical means65 (such as a cap, all a), a (non in-mould) label).
- (3) Single-use packaging (designed to be used once) aimed at delivering a refill for a reusable package is not

⁵⁴ ISO 186022013, "Cosed-loop system?"Open-loop system" definition: Reuse can take place within a company or a cooperating group of companies (dosed-loop) or amongst unspecified companies (open-loop). SI SID 186022013. "Rokapie used for the same surroom" definition: Reuse

⁵⁵ ISD 186022013, "Packaging used for the same purpose" definition: Reuse of pallets, loaded originally with dairy products and now loaded with house both to serve the same summer or pallets."

bricks is reuse for the same purpose. 56 ISO 18601-2013, Packaging component definition.

considered reusable packaging

- A reusable item can undergo reconditioning, which refers to operations necessary to restore a reusable packaging to a functional state for further reuse (ISO 18603:2013).
- Reusable packaging should be designed to be recyclable as it will inevitably reach the maximum number of reuse cycles at some point, after which recycling ensures the material is kept in the economy.

RECYCLABLE PACKAGING

RECYCLING

References to "recycling" in this guidance always refer to "material recycling".

Definition: Material recycling

Reprocessing, by means of a manufacturing process, of a used packaging material into a product, a component incorporated into a product, or a secondary (recycled) raw product as a fuel.

Source: ISO 18604/2013 - Parkaging and the environment - Material recycling, modified (note to

Further explanatory notes

- (1) This includes both mechanical recycling processes (maintaining polymer structure) and chemical recycling processes (breaking down polymer structure into more basic building blocks via chemical or enzymatic processes).
- (2) It explicitly excludes technologies that do not reprocess energy.

Chemical recycling can be considered in line with a circular economy if the technology is used to create However, if these same processes are used for plasticscannot be considered as recycling (according to the International Organization for Standardization (ISO)), nor as part of a circular economy. For a chemical recycling process, just like for the production of virgin plastics. Clasheral appriable consider the technical problem movels a no hazardous chemicals should be used that pose a application of the precautionary principle.

(3) High quality recycling and of recycled materials are essential in a circular economy, where one aim is to keep materials at their highest utility at all times. This maximizes the value retained in the economy, the range of possible applications for which the material can be used and the number of possible future life cycles. It therefore minimizes material losses and the need for virgin material input.

- Maximizing the quality and value of materials during recycling is made possible through a combination of packaging design and high-quality collection, sorting, cleaning and recycling technologies and systems.

- On the design side, organizations such as the Association of Plastic Recyclers (APR), Plastics Recyclers Europe (PRE), European PET Bottle Platform (EPBP), RECOUP and others have designfor-recyclability guidelines for plastic packaging that. as well as recyclability, often indicate the quality of the recycled output (through traffic light systems

in the context of the New Plastics Economy Global Commitment, as well as this guidance, where the term "recyclable" is used by businesses that put packaging on the market (including packaging producers, fast-moving consumer goods companies, retailers, hospitality and food service companies). "technically recyclable .57 is clearly not enough: recycling does not just need to work in a laboratory, instead, it should be proven that packaging can be recycled in practice and at scale.

system (collection, sorting and recycling) that actually recycle by population size.

It is important to assess the recyclability of each package format design, manufacturing processes and the most likely way of using, disposing of and collecting it. For example, the fact that polyethylene terephthalate (PET) bottles are proven imply that all PET packaging formats can be considered recyclable, nor that every single PET bottle is (depending on labels, glues and inks).

5 Something to think about

Packaging that can be recycled should be able to be recycled on a large scale. How can we ensure that communities have the proper higher percentage of plastics?





Similarly, a large polyethylene (PE) film and a small-format PE wrapper might currently have a different likelihood of being collected and recycled in practice.

Moving towards only using "recyclable" packaging as described above is a necessary first step, but it should happen in conjunction with other efforts to ensure all packaging is actually recycled in practice in every market where it is used.

Definition: Recyclable packaging

A packaging (1) or packaging component (2.3) is recyclable if its successful post-consumer (4) collection, sorting, and recycling (5) is proven to work in practice and at scale.

(1) In the context of the Global Commitment as well as this guidance, a package can be considered recyclable if its main packaging components, together reposition y-fold of the entire packaging weight, are recyclable according to the above definition, and if the remaining minor components are compatible with the recycling process and do not hinder the recyclability of the main components.

Examples:

 If a bottle and its cap are recyclable, the packaging can be claimed to be recyclable if it has a label (<5% of total weight) that does not hinder the recyclability of the bottle and cap.

 If that same bottle has a label that hinders or contaminates the recycling of the bottle and cap, the entire packaging is non-recyclable.

Longer term, the aim should be for all packaging components (including labels) to be recyclable according to the above definition.

(2) A packaging component is a part of packaging that can be separated by hand or by using simple physical means (ISD 18601) such as a cap, a lid and (non in-mould) labels.

- (3) A packaging component can only be considered recyclate if that entire component, excluding minor incidental constituents (6), is recyclable according to the definition above. If just one material of a multi-material component is recyclate, one can only claim recyclatibility of that material, not of the component as a whole (in line with USFTC Generofs Guideand IdS) 14021).
- (4) SO 14021 defines post-consumer material as material penezed by households or by commercial industrial and institutional facilities in their role as end users of the product that can no longer be used for its intended purpose. This includes returns of material from the distribution chain. It excludes pre-consumer material (such as production scap).
- [5] Packaging for which the only proven way of recycling is recycling into applications that do not allow any further use-cycles (such as plastics-toroads) cannot be considered 'recyclable packaging'.
- ISO 18601:2013: A packaging constituent is a part from which packaging or its components are made and which cannot be separated by hand or by using simple physical means (such as a layer of a multi-layered pack or an in-mould label).

Further explanatory notes

- (1) Based on the principle that repecting needs to work in practice and a scale, the definition engines the series systems to work material choices, packaging of using, disposing and collecting the packaging; and the availability, compatibility and performance of instances for collection, soming and recycling, it also implicibly requires the system out stochnically, conveniently ensuing the accessing packages and scioonnically too that the scioonnic packages and scioonnically too that the scioonnic material)
- (2) Based on the principle that recycling needs to work in practice and at scale, the definition of recyclable packaging allows for innovation. A packaging item that is not currently recyclable could be so in future (for instance by introducing effective collection, sorting and recycling technologies at scale).
- (3) It is important to assess the recyclability of each package

⁵⁸ United States Federal Trade Commission (2012), Guides for the Use of Environmental Marketing Claims ("Green Guides"), Part 260.

separately, taking into account its design, (1) There are some geographical areas where (formal or manufacturing processes and most likely way of using disposing and collecting it, which all have a significant impact on the possibility and probability of the package being recycled in practice. For example:

packaging, additives and colourants, glues, inks, caps and labels.

- Manufacturing process - sometimes additives are used in the manufacturing process or residual amounts of catalysts or other products end up in the packaging.

- Most likely way of using and disposing - assuming the most likely way of using and disposing the packaging rather than assuming unlikely conditions. For example, in most countries one cannot assume that a significant share of households will disassemble packaging before disposing of it. Other questions to consider include: would the package be disposed most often with or without the label or cap still attached? would it most likely be disposed of empty and clean, or contaminated with product residues, glue or lid residues?

- Most likely way of collecting - is the pack most to-business bulk materials or in one for household materials? A narkage could be recycled in practice and at scale in business-to-business but not in PE pallet wraps usually end up in different collection systems from PE wraps around consumer

- (4) While the definition does not specify where a package is recycled (to allow for the export and import of materials). businesses should ensure any exported packaging actually gets recycled before considering the recycling pathway to work in practice.
- (5) The available technical design-for-recycling guidelines by organizations such as APR_PRF_EPRP_RECOUP bring a more technical and in-depth analysis of design are complementary to the "recyclable" definition of this appendix, and businesses are encouraged to refer to and apply these design-for-recyclability guidelines.

It is challenging to quantitatively define "in practice" and "at scale" because of data availability. However, a few (non-exhaustive) suggested qualitative prerequisites are listed below:

- informal) collection systems are in place to collect for recycling a large share of the packaging marketed in that region.
- The package is compatible with the material stream in which it is collected.
- (3) The package is sorted and aggregated into defined streams for recycling processes and most of what is collected gets recycled.
- (4) The package can be processed and recycled with commercial recycling processes.
- A viable end market for the recyclate is available to put the material back in use.

This definition does not apply to claims linked to specific geographical areas (such as on-pack recycling labels or customer communications), as these should always take into account the local context and systems in place (in line with ISO 14021 and US FTCL and be in line with the local regulations that apply to such claims.

COMPOSTABLE PACKAGING

designed to be recyclable, or where relevant compostable16 (or both), 59 ideally after several reuse cycles. As designing packaging for recycling comes with the advantage of keeping the value of the material in the economy it is often preferred over designing for composting. However, the latter can be valuable for targeted applications where considered appropriate and beneficial, if coupled with the relevant collection and composting infrastructure to ensure it gets composted in practice.

These targeted applications include packaging items for which composting offers a mechanism to return biological nutrients from the product the packaging contains, which of fertilizer or soil improver. Examples could include tea bags. compostable bags for compost collection in cities, or packaging materials that often end up in organic waste streams (such as fruit/vegetable labels). Applications for which compostable plastic packaging is used are ideally harmonized across the compostable and recyclable material streams.

Something to think about

Definition: Recyclable Packaging is packaging that can be processed and reused in the production of new products.

What standards does packaging have to meet so it is considered recyclable?



Compostable packaging needs to go hand in hand with Compostability is a characteristic of packaging or of a appropriate collection and composting infrastructure in order for it to be composted in practice. Therefore, when claiming compostability in the context of a specific geographical area (such as on-pack recycling labels, public communications), it is important to take into account the ISO 14021, and be in line with the local regulations that apply to such claims.18

Composting can take place in an industrial facility following a controlled process managed by professionals, as well as in a collective or at home, where the process is subject to the householder's skills and other environmental conditions. The terms "composting" and "compostable" referred to in this document mainly refer to industrial composting.

COMPOSTING

Definition: Composting

Aerobic process designed to produce compost

Note 1 to entry: Compost is a soil conditioner obtained by biodegradation of a mixture consisting principally of vegetable residues, occasionally with other organic material and having a limited mineral content.

Further explanatory notes

(1) Composting can take place in an industrial facility, a collective, or at home:60

- Industrial composting: Municipal or industrial composition is a professionally managed and controlled, aerobic thermophilic waste treatment process covered by international standards and certification schemes, which results in compost - a

- Home composting: Designing packaging so that it is home-compostable means it adheres to more stringent conditions than industrially compostable packaging and increases the range of possible composting processes (both industrial and home composting). The home-composting process remains subject to the variability of householders' skills and experience, and the final product is not standardized

product, not of a material. As testing standards require packaging to disintegrate and biodegrade in a certain time frame, compostability is influenced not only by the material choice but also by, for example, the format, the dimensions, and usage of inks and colourants. For example, while a thin PLA film might be compostable a solid block of the evant same material might not degrade fast enough to be

Care should therefore be taken when claiming "compostability" it most often means that the material could be used to produce compostable items or packaging. It does not mean that all items produced using this material are compostable.

Definition: Compostable packaging

A packaging or packaging component (1) is compostable if it complies with relevant international compostability standards (2) and if its successful postconsumer (3) collection, (sorting), and composting is

- (1) ISO 18601:2013: A packaging component is a part using simple physical means (such as a cap, a lid
- (2) Including ISO 18606, ISO 14021, EN13432, ASTM D-6400 and AS4736.
- that generated by households or by commercial, industrial and institutional facilities in their role as end users of the product that can no longer be used for its intended purpose. This includes returns of
- (4) "At scale" implies that there are significant and relevant geographical areas, as measured by population size, where the packaging is actually composted in practice.

Further explanatory notes

- (1) As per ISO 18606, a package is industrially compostable if it meets the following criteria:
 - Characterization: identification characterisation of components prior to
 - Biodegradation: conversion of at least 90% of organic carbon to CO2 within 26 weeks under controlled composting conditions (at +58°C

5 Something to think about

Definition: Compostable Packaging is packaging that can break down into natural

What is compostable packaging? What met so the packaging is compostable? What is the percentage of actual products that are

⁶¹ European Bioplastics. Factsheet Bioplastics - industry standards & labels.

wfuns 🕢

Distingegration: distingegration is considered cardistancy if within 12 weeks under controlled composting conditions, no more than 10% of the original dry mass of a package remains in the oversize fraction after seiving through a 2,0 mm sieve (at +58°C +/2°C).

 Compost quality: the compost obtained at the end of the process does not cause any negative effects;

 Maximum concentration of regulated metals: it does not exceed a given concentration. Of regulated heavy metals and other substances hazardous to the environment.

- (2) As per ISO 18605, a package is considered compostable only if all the individual components of the package meat the compostability requirements specified. If the components can be easily, physically separated before disposed, then the physically separated components can be individually considered for compositing.
- (3) Compossible plastic can be composted in a municipal or industrial facility as well as, if it is designed to be home compossible, in a collective or at home as a complementary after-use option where relevant.
- (4) Infrae whi DG1 4021 and UST Green claims, a markers though alsoly quality composably claims considering whether one composate in the considering whether one composate is to composate considering whether constraints and the composate devices of the simulation of the simulation of the devices of the simulation of the simulation of short for example, the UST Caren guide states about the limited availability of municipal or cathy and promotely quality composate claims: To activity and promotely quality composate claims: To activity and promotely quality composate claims: To apply of devices of the limit of the simulation of the participal of the simulation of the simulation of the participal of the simulation of the sim
- (5) Local context and available infrastructure should be taken into account when claiming compostability in a specific geographic area.



The term "biodogradable" should not be confused with compositable" isologradabile" designates a propeny that is needed — among others – to make a package compositable is does not indicate whicher aplatic package can in practice be collected and composted following a managed process (in terms of how quick) and under what conditions is can biodogradab.

POST-CONSUMER RECYCLED CONTENT

In a circular economy, products and components are to be made from as much recycled content as possible (where legally and technically possible). This reduces the dependence on virgin (fossil) feedstocks, and creates a domand-pull for recycled plastics, sending a clear signal stimulating investments in the collection, sorting and recycling industry.

It is important for inductive with requirements for high-quality meaning under the majoring inductive, the mainsites the use of recycled content (baseling in minimum, the mainsites the use of recycled content (baseling in minimum, the mainsites the use of the second content (baseling in the minimum of the second value as at times maximum of the monther of possible futures used as a second value of the second value baseling in the use cycles of the maximum classifier of used to the lower called particularity and the second value baseling to example at all particularity and particularity in the lower called particularity and particularity in the second value baseling the second value of the second value baseling that the second value ba

Definition: Post-consumer recycled content

Proportion, by mass, of post-consumer (1) recycled material in a product or packaging.

Note: ISO14021 defines post-consumer material as that generated by households or by commercial, industrial and institutional facilities in their relea as end users of the product that can no longer be used for its intended purpose. This includes returns of material from the distribution chain.

Source: ISO 14021:2016 modified, Environmental labels and declarationa – Self-declared environmental claims (Type II environmental labelling), Usage of terms, modified (focus on post-consumer recycled material).

Further explanatory notes

(1) While is a circular economy, pre-consumer waste should be kept in the system, the priority is to avoid such pre-consumer waste as part of an efficient production process. This definition therefore excludes pre-consumer recycled content (50 1402), Usage of terms: Recycled content: PRo-consumer recycled content includes materials diverted from the waste stream during a manufacturing process.



Definition: Biodegradable are materials that can decompose naturally through the action of living organisms, typically microorganisms.

What is biodegradable? What is the difference between biodegradable and compostable?

wfuns 🥢

- (2) Transparency about the nature of the recycled content (post-consumer versus pre-consumer, for instance) is to be ensured whenever possible.
- (3) As referred to in ISO 14021, the percentage of recycled material (by weight) shall be mentioned when a claim of recycled content is made, separately stating the percentage of recycled content used in products and packaging, without aggregating it.
- (4) Amounts and quality of packaging made out of recycled content should be in line with relevant food contact and health and safety regulations where packaging is put on the market.
- (5) To verify or certify the use of recycled content, there are verification systems issued by a range of assurance bodies.

references

EASAC, 2020. Packaging plastics in the circular economy. EASAC Policy Report 39. Availableat: https://bit. ly/31Jus3N

Global Tourism Plastics Initiative, 2020. Recommendations for the tourism sector to continue taking action on plastic pollution during COVID-19 recovery. Available at: https:// www.oneplanetnetwork.org/sites/default/files/201007___ recommendations_for_tackling_plastics_during_covid_ recovery_in_covism.pdf

Global Tourism Plastics Initiative, 2021. Addressing pollution from single-use plastic products: A Life Cycle Approach – Kwy massages for tourism businesses. Available at: https:// www.oneplanemetwork.org/sites/default/files/210706_____ single-use.plastic_products__dobbe_paging_final_pdf

Lymeus, F., 2020. Next steps in tackling plastic litter – a nudging strategy for reducing consumption of single-use disposable cups. PBM Sweden AB.

New Plastics Economy Global Commitment – definitions. Available at: https://www.newplasticseconomy.org/assets/ doc/13319-Global-Commitment-Definitions.pdf

Pew Charitable Trusts and SYSTEMIQ, 2020. Breaking the Plastics Wave - A Comprehensive Assessment of Pathways towards Sooping Ocean Plastic Pollution. Available at https://www.pewtrusts.org/-media/assets/2020/07/ breakingtheplasticower, peop rt.pdf

Raubenheimer, K., Urho, N., 2020. Possible elements of a new Practices and Recommendations.

global agreement to prevent plastic pollution. The Nordic Council of Ministers. Copenhagen, Denmark. Available at: https://pub.norden.org/ternanord2020-535/

Rijsswaterstaat, Netherlands on behalf of the UN One Plane Network Sustainable Public Procurement programme, 2022, Sustainable Public Procurement of Plastics at https:// www.oneplanetnetwork.org/innowledge-centre/resources/ sustainable-outlic-procurement-plastics-audiance

Ryberg, M., Hauschild, M., Wang, F., Averouc-Monnery, S., Laurert, A., 2010. Global environmental losses of plastics across their value chains. Resources, Conservation & Recycling, 151 (2019) 104459 DOI, https://doi.org/10.1016/j. resconre.2019.104459

Sustainable Lifestyles and Education Programme, 2021. Reducing Plastic Pollution: Campaigns That Work - Insights and examples to maximize the effectiveness of campaigns for sustainable plastic consumption.

UNEP and ITC, 2017. Guidelines for Providing Product

Sustainability Information. UN Environment, International Trade Centre, Consumers International, International Climate Initiative. United Nations Environment Programme. Available at:

https://www.oneplanetnetwork.org/ knowledge-centre/resources/guidelines-providing-productsustainability-information

UNEP, 2018a. Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach Stocktoking report. Notten, P. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi. Kenva. UNEP, 2018b. Mapping of global plastics value chain and plastics lasses to the environment (with a focus on marine environment). Byberg, M., Laurent, A., Hauschild, M. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

UNEP, 2019. Addressing marine plastics: A systemic approach - Recommendations for action. Notten, P. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

UNEP, 2020. National guidance for plastic pollution hotspotting

and shaping action - Introduction report. Boucher J.; M. Zgola, et al. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

UNEP, 2021a. Cotalysing science-based policy action on sustainable consumption and production. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

UNEP, 2021b. From Pallution to Solution. A global assessment

of marine litter and plostic pollution. United Nations Environment Programme. Nairobi, Kenya.

UNEP and Consumers International, 2020. Can I Reycle This? A Global Mapping and Assessment of Standards, Labels and Claims on Plottic Proclinging. https://www. oneplanetnetwork.org/knowledge-centre/resources/can-i recycle.global-mapping-and-assessment-standards-labelsand-claims

UNEP and World Travel and Tourism Council, 2021. Rethinking Single Use Plastic Products in Tourism: Impacts, Management Practices and Recommendations.

Wang, F., L. Talaue McManus, R. Xie (eds.), 2019. Addressing Marine Plastics: A Roadmap to a Circular Economy. United Nations Environment Programme. Available at: https:// gefmarineplastics.org/bublications/Inddressing-marineplastics-a-roadmap-to-a-circular-economy

WEF, 2020. Plastics, the Circular Economy and Global Trade. Available at: https://www.weforum.org/whitepapers/ plastics-the-circular-economy-and-global-trade

WRAP, 2021, Banbury, Exploring the use of green nudges to reduce consumption of dispirable coffee cups in Sweden, Prepared by WRAP https://www.oneplantinetwork.org/ Sites/default/files/from-crm/green_nudges__pre-pilot_ insights_and_recommendations.pdf



